
Date Published: 2 July 2018     

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 10 July 2018 at 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence Andrea Clarke

2  Declarations of Interest 

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea Clarke

3  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6) Andrea Clarke

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  How will being an Integrated Care Systems (ICS) benefit 
Gloucestershire? 

Information on Integrated Care Systems is included at Section 8 of the One 
Gloucestershire STP Lead Report.

Mary Hutton, Dr 
Andy Seymour, 
Margaret Willcox 
OBE

5  Stroke Rehabilitation - Update (Pages 7 - 18) Mary Hutton

6  Quarter 4 Adult Social Care Performance Report (Pages 19 - 26) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

7  Quarter 4 Public Health Performance Report (Pages 27 - 32) Sarah Scott

8  Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report 
(Pages 33 - 72)

Mary Hutton

9  One Gloucestershire STP Lead Report (Pages 73 - 84) Mary Hutton



    

INFORMATION ITEMS

10  Director of Adult Social Services Report (Pages 85 - 88) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

11  Director of Public Health Report (Pages 89 - 94) Sarah Scott

12  GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report (Pages 95 - 118) Mary Hutton, Dr 
Andy Seymour

Membership – Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin (Chairman), Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, 
Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Eva Ward

Co-opted Members - Cllr Stephen Andrews (Cotswold District Council), Cllr Janet Day 
(Tewkesbury Borough Council), Cllr Collette Finnegan (Gloucester City Council), 
Cllr Martin Horwood (Cheltenham Borough Council), Cllr Steve Lydon (Stroud District Council) and 
Cllr Helen Molyneux (Forest of Dean District Council)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be discussed 
at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Council Chamber.  
Completing this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent 
members from declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items.  The list 
will be available for public inspection.

Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest 
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns Tel: 01452 328472 /fax: 01452 
425149 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Clarke, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324203/e-mail: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p88 of the 

Constitution).
2. Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 

permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 324203) to make the necessary 
arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not 
wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on 
duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point. Please remain there and await further 
instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

HEALTH AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 
8 May 2018 at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Stephen Andrews
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Collette Finnegan
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin

Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE
Cllr Robert Vines
Cllr Eva Ward

Substitutes: Cllr Ron Allen (In place of Cllr Janet Day)
Cllr Colin Hay (In place of Cllr Joe Harris)

Officers in attendance: Sarah Scott and Margaret Willcox OBE

Apologies: Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Janet Day, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Steve Harvey and Cllr 
Helen Molyneux

Also in attendance
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)
Mark Wilkingshaw – Accountable Officer and Director of Commissioning
Becky Parish – Associate Director Patient and Public Engagement
Dr Andy Seymour –Clinical Chair
Gill Bridgland - Commissioning Implementation Manager

Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT)
Deborah Lee – Chief Executive
Peter Lachecki - Chair

Gloucestershire County Council
Margaret Willcox –Director of Adult Social Services 
Sarah Scott – Director of Public Health
Cllr Roger Wilson – Cabinet Member Adult Social Care Commissioning 
Cllr Tim Harman – Cabinet Member Public Health and Communities

Healthwatch Gloucestershire 
Bob Lloyd Smith
 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust/2Gether NHS Foundation Trust
Paul Roberts – Chief Executive
Ingrid Barker - Chair
Professor Jane Melton - Director of Engagement and Integration

Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd
Ed Potter – Managing Director 
Paul Willetts – National Head of Service Development

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Cllr Stephen Hirst declared a personal interest as Chair of Tetbury Hospital. 

Cllr Stephen Andrews declared a personal interest as he is a Community First Responder 
with the South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust. 

Cllr Carole Allaway Martin declared a personal interest as she is a member of the Royal 
College of Nursing.

23. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 8 March 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

24. NON EMERGENCY PATIENT TRANSPORT SERVICE 
24.1 The committee was pleased to welcome the Managing Director and National Head of 

Service Development from Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd, and the Lead Commissioner 
from NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG) to the committee to 
debate this issue with committee members. The committee received a detailed 
presentation from Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd and the GCCG. (For information - the 
presentation slides were uploaded to the council website and included in the minute book.)

24.2 The committee had last met with Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd in March 2017. 
Performance data at that time was showing a mixed picture; there has been some 
improvement in the overall picture, but concerns remain particularly relating to KPI4 and 
KPI5. Other challenges included the increasing number of bariatric patients. The committee 
heard that it was the volatility of the demand, not necessarily the volume that created 
challenge.

24.3 It was disappointing to note that there was still no national guidance relating to non-
emergency transport or a national government lead; although Arriva Transport Solutions 
Ltd did lobby MPs on a general basis, and, of course, also engaged with them on an 
individual case basis as part of their constituency work.

24.4 Frustration was expressed by Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd that although the discharge 
process has improved such that transport was considered earlier in the process, this was 
still not the norm, and there was still a high number of on the day requests. The Chief 
Executive of Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) informed the 
committee that GHNHSFT had as much to contribute to a well performing system as Arriva 
Transport Solutions Ltd, and that booking on the day was not the best way. It was also 
stated that all partner organisations needed to get much better at planning; this was an 
expensive resource that should be used more efficiently. 

24.5 The committee was informed that Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd was working with the local 
authority to ascertain if there was any capacity in the local authority fleet during ‘quiet’ 
periods. Members were also informed that following a successful implementation of 
dedicated routes for renal dialysis patients requiring frequent journeys in other areas this 
would go live in Gloucestershire on 1 May 2018. 

24.6 Members were informed that an extension to this contract has been negotiated until 31 
May 2019 to avoid a winter start date for a new contract. In response to a question it was 
explained that the re-commissioning process would be conducted in an open and 
transparent manner, as previously, and that there would be opportunities for the public and 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

the committee to engage with the procurement process. It was also explained that all the 
KPIs were being reviewed as part of the re-commissioning process.

24.7 It was questioned where the boundary between this service and that provided by the 
Voluntary and Community Sector lay? It was clarified that the responsibility of NHS 
Commissioners was to commission a service for non-emergency medical (not including 
primary care), not social, need.

24.8 The Chief Executive, GHNHSFT, informed the committee that feedback received by 
GHNHSFT on the non-emergency transport service was always shared with the GCCG. It 
was noted that that the majority of feedback related to waiting time, in particular following 
an outpatient attendance or admission. She re-iterated that this was as much about 
partners planning better for discharge, but emphasised that there would always be 
occasions where a patient would have to be discharged on the day. 

24.9 Members were aware of anecdotal information with regard to patients being transported 
home very late in the day and asked whether this did happen. In response it was explained 
that if Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd received bookings in the evening they would have to 
respond to them. However, they would check with the clinicians at the hospital as to the 
appropriateness of the pick up time and would reschedule if requested. 

24.10 It was commented that it was important to continue to inform and educate the public on the 
eligibility criteria for this service, and to be prepared to challenge when there was evidence 
of misuse of the service.

24.11 It was agreed that in order to facilitate a better understanding of this service committee 
members would visit an Arriva Transport Solutions Ltd control centre.

25. THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
25.1 The committee had received this report at the committee meeting on 8 March 2018 but had 

not had time to give the report its full consideration. The Director of Public Health (DPH) 
therefore gave a detailed presentation on the key messages identified in the report (for 
information - the presentation slides were uploaded to the council website and included in 
the minute book).

25.2 The committee welcomed this report. Members liked the clean, clear approach to the 
report, which meant that the information was understandable, and direct. 

25.3 Members agreed that this report presented a challenging picture of need and health 
inequality in the county, and agreed with the Director of Public Health that understanding 
the underlying issues could help to interrupt the cycle of adversity. 

25.4 Committee members indicated that an important factor for children and families was access 
to early help/early years, and were interested in the Adverse Childhood Experiences 
(ACEs) work being led by the Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board. Members were 
also pleased to note the restorative practice work taking in place in schools to try and 
reduce the number of fixed term and permanent exclusions.

25.5 It was commented, by one member, that the children centre changes had not helped, and 
that it was a struggle to keep them running properly. They also informed the committee that 
schools in their area struggled to get support from families. They mentioned the changes to 
the youth services, and that what was needed was team of detached youth workers. They 
also hoped that this report would be shared with the district councils in the county. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

25.6 Members were very concerned that many young children were not ‘school ready’. The DPH 
explained that this was not always about the parents, but could be related to developmental 
factors, and also explained the role of Public Health visitors in this process.

26. ONE GLOUCESTERSHIRE STP LEAD REPORT 
26.1 The Deputy Accountable Officer and Director of Commissioning, GCCG, gave a detailed 

presentation of the report. 

26.2 It was questioned what was meant by ‘achieve very low numbers’ with regard to patients 
placed out of area for acute psychiatric care. There was agreement that it was good to try 
and have low numbers out of county, but knowing exactly what the aim was would be 
helpful and give a better understanding of the objective.
ACTION: Jane Melton

26.3 In response to a question regarding social prescribing it was explained that the GCCG 
have a series of measures for measuring the impact. It was also explained that social 
prescribing allowed a response to a person’s wider health and wellbeing needs; and that 
the GCCG was seen as leading the way nationally. It was clarified that all GP practices in 
the county were involved in this approach. 

26.4 It was questioned whether people in the county would be denied services if they were 
obese, or smoked. It was explained that there was no blanket policy in place in 
Gloucestershire, but that clinical guidelines for procedures would need to be followed.

27. GCCG CLINICAL CHAIR/ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER REPORT 
27.1 The committee welcomed the news that the CQC has improved its overall rating of 

Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust to ‘Good’ following its inspection in January and 
February 2018. 

27.2 The committee was particularly concerned with the financial position at Gloucestershire 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT). Members were disappointed to note that the 
last reported forecast for the year (February 2018) was a £27.8m deficit against a planned 
deficit for the year of £14.6m, and was now at £30m, and questioned whether this was 
related to the problems with the TrakCare system. 

27.3 The Chief Executive, GHNHSFT, informed the committee that the significant risk identified 
as part of the recovery plan had come to fruition, and that this did relate in part to the 
deployment of the Trusts electronic patient record, TrakCare. She reported that the 
GHNHSFT had received tremendous financial support from the GCCG through its contract 
process, and had hoped for the same level of support from other commissioners but this 
had not happened resulting in a significant income loss for the Trust (£10m). The Chief 
Executive noted that in respect of other aspects of the financial recovery plan, the Trust 
had performed exceptionally well achieving one of the highest levels of cost improvement 
in the sector, whilst dramatically improving operational performance and outcomes for 
patients.

27.4 However, it was important to stress that, in respect of the Trust’s ability to reduce its cost 
base without impacting on the quality of services provided to patients, it has achieved 
better than, not just the sector average, but was one of the strongest of the eleven Trusts 
that were in financial special measures. The Chief Executive wanted to stress that this was 
testament to the Trust’s staff. She further explained that GHNHSFT was evidentially 
delivering lower cost services than the national index, and due to the cost efficiency of the 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Trust it was delivering this scale of cost reduction without impacting on the quality of care to 
patients. She reminded the committee that it has seen on many occasions in the last year 
evidence of where standards of care have improved, eg. sepsis, trauma and orthopaedic, 
patient experience, improvement against the A & E 4 hour targets. 

27.5 In response to a question as to whether the Trust’s financial position would result in cuts to 
services the Chief Executive reminded the committee that the Trust’s position had always 
been that the quality of care to patients would not decline as the Trust sought to balance its 
books. She reiterated that the Trust has no intention to cut services, as had been explained 
at previous committee meetings if the Trust cut services this would result in a loss of 
income from their commissioners so would do very little to improve the financial position. It 
was explained that the question of whether there would be cuts to services was for the 
commissioners to answer. She stated that whilst there were no plans to cut services, the 
status quo was not sustainable and the nature and location of some services may change 
in the future. However, she stressed an absolute commitment to ensure full and proper 
engagement and consultation with the public, through the HCSOC, where any such 
changes were considered material.

27.6 The Deputy Accountable Office, GCCG, stated that the focus was on ensuring that there 
was a really strong offer of services from GHNHSFT. He explained that there would be a 
need for services to be more efficient in the future, but there would not be service cuts. He 
informed members that everyone in the NHS was working towards the national requirement 
for services to be as productive and efficient as possible, and as the committee was aware 
through previous updates this did mean a need for change and development. 

27.7 Following the recent announcement by NHS England regarding issues relating to the 
Breast Cancer Screening process members questioned whether it was known how many 
people in Gloucestershire had been affected? The Director of Public Health informed the 
committee that NHS England was still working through the figures, and she would include 
an update on this matter in her report to the 10 July 2018 meeting of the committee.
ACTION: Sarah Scott

28. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

29. DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 1.05 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



#glosSTP 

Gloucestershire Stroke Pathway 

The Clinical Case for Change for Bed Based 
Stroke Rehabilitation 

 
 

Please note: This information is confidential. Proposals detailed within this document 
are subject to consultation/involvement 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



#glosSTP 

Background 
 

• Rehabilitation helps people become as  independent as possible following an 

injury or illness.  

• The county's rehabilitation services have been reviewed – change was needed. 

• One area identified as having significant opportunity for improvement was stroke. 

P
age 8



#glosSTP 

Why stroke? 

• Excellent research evidence 
 

“Stroke patients who receive organised inpatient care in a stroke unit are more 

likely to be alive, independent and living at home one year after the stroke. The 

benefits were most apparent in units based in a discrete ward.”  

Cochrane review 2013 (Stroke Unit Trialists Collaboration) 

 

• Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP) 

results = requires improvement  
 

• Good national guidelines for stroke services 
 

P
age 9



#glosSTP 

SSNAP Scoring Summary: Dec 2017 - Mar 2018 
Score A (best) to E (worst) (England, Wales and NI) 

 
Team 

Gloucestershire 
Royal Hospital 

SSNAP level D 

SSNAP score 55 

1) Scanning C 

2) Stroke unit C 

3) Thrombolysis C 

4) Specialist Assessments C 

5) Occupational therapy C 

6) Physiotherapy D 

7) Speech and Language therapy E 

8) MDT working E 

9) Standards by discharge B 

10) Discharge processes B 

1-4 Front door 
All domains improved – 

more to do 
 

5-8 Therapy / Rehab 
No changes made yet 

 
 

9-10 Pre-Discharge 
Good results 

Total Score D  
Moved up from 38 to 55 
over last year (C=60-69) 

P
age 10



#glosSTP 

Case study  

• https://youtu.be/M0-_x8xt-Do 

P
age 11

https://youtu.be/M0-_x8xt-Do
https://youtu.be/M0-_x8xt-Do
https://youtu.be/M0-_x8xt-Do
https://youtu.be/M0-_x8xt-Do
https://youtu.be/M0-_x8xt-Do


#glosSTP 

1. Do nothing 

2. Increase therapy in Gloucestershire Royal Hospital 

3. Enhance existing Early Supported Discharge Team into all 

community hospitals 

4. One specialist unit based in a community hospital 

 

 

 
Modelling indicates 14 beds would be required in this setting 

Options Considered  

P
age 12



#glosSTP 

What are the benefits of the new service? 

 

• Intensive specialist therapy available 7  days/ week. 

• Single room en-suite accommodation. 

• Rehab gym, kitchen, social space and outdoor facilities. 

• Boosts morale for patients, carers and family  

• Seamless links into the countywide Early Supported Discharge Team. 
 

 

• Improved availability of beds on the specialist ward for all new stroke 
patients. 

• Increased time with specialist therapists. 

• Reduction in extended stays in a medicalised environment 

 

Overall we will also improve our performance measured against national 
audit standards 

 

 GRH  

 New Unit 

P
age 13



#glosSTP 

Community Hospital Bed Modelling 

Current bed base The modelling undertaken 

• Looked at 2 years worth of data 

– All patients who had an admission 

& discharge in 2016 and 2017 

• Analysis by hospital, locality and GP 

practice looking at: 

– Length of stay, admission 

numbers, discharge destination 

etc. 

• Analysis of stroke patients already in 

community hospitals  

 

Hospital  Beds Locality  Beds 

Cirencester 49 Cotswolds 71 

North Cots 22 

Dilke 27 Forest  47 

Lydney  20 

Stroud 38 Stroud & BV 58 

Vale 20 

Tewkesbury  20 Tews 20 

The Question  
What do we need to do to be assured there will be sufficient beds for 

the people of  Stroud and Berkeley Vale to be treated in their locality? 

P
age 14



#glosSTP 

Community Hospital Bed Modelling 

The modelling undertaken was based on how many beds each locality would need 
if we kept doing exactly the same things we’ve been doing for the last two years 
e.g. the same number of admissions and no improvement in efficiency 

 

For Stroud & Berkley Vale that means…… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We would still have sufficient beds for local people across Stroud and Vale 
Hospitals with the introduction of the stroke unit 

 

However, Countywide we would need to increase our efficiency by 8 beds 
because….. 

 

6 patients who have had a stroke are already in community hospitals and we would 
‘cohort’ them in the stroke unit. Therefore 8 ‘new’ patients would come to the stroke 
unit ( 14– 6=8) 

Lower Quartile Average Upper Quartile Total current 
beds 

Stroke beds Remaining 
locality beds 
(total – UQ) 

31.6 36.6 42 58  14 44 

P
age 15



#glosSTP 

Improving bed flow 

The analysis we have undertaken 
and the work we have done with 
community hospital staff shows that 
there are a number of opportunities 
to improve flow through our beds.  

 

A key piece of work, that we have 
already started, is to remove the 
number of patients who have a stay 
of greater than 50 days 

 

This would release 11-15 beds and 
fully close the ‘gap’ of 8 beds 
created by the stroke unit  

 

“For patients over the age of 80, a week in 
bed can lead to 10 years of muscle ageing, 
1.5 kg of muscle loss, and may lead to 
increased dependency and demotivation” 

P
age 16



#glosSTP 

Engagement to date (ends 31 July 2018) 

It might be 
harder to visit 
from further 

away 

It will help to 
improve staff 
morale and 
recruitment 

It’s obvious – 
specialist care 
at a specialist 

location…  
Families cope 

Family would 
be able to be 

more involved 
in therapy 

Right Care at the 
Right Time, in the 
Right Place 7 days 

a week 

It sounds fantastic – 
is it better than going 

straight home? 

Being able to 
access the 

outside is so 
important 

How will the 
transition to the 
community be 

improved? 

Gives the 
patient a 
feeling of 

“moving on” 
and progress 

Mitigating Actions 
 
• Open visiting, transport 

links, technological 
solutions 

• Managing Expectations – 
Home is always best where 
possible 

• Strengthen links with local 
stroke clubs and the unit, 
improve  discharge 
information  

P
age 17



#glosSTP 

Conclusion 

A 14 bedded community specialist stroke 

rehabilitation unit based at The Vale 

Community Hospital as part of a 

comprehensive countywide stroke 

service will provide the best chance of recovery 

for the people of Gloucestershire.  

It will deliver benefits to patients’ health 

and reduce social care needs. 

https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/stroke-rehab/ 

P
age 18

https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/stroke-rehab/
https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/stroke-rehab/
https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/stroke-rehab/
https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/stroke-rehab/


Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny Scorecard
Quarter 4 Reporting 2017/18

The following scorecards are enclosed:

This report has been prepared by the Performance & Improvement Team using data up to 31/03/2018

Page No.
Key to Symbols 2
Adult Social Care Performance 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary 6

1

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,2243,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 20



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

3

P
age 21



Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
 Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.2 % 99.1 % 98.2 % 97.7 % 97.4 % 96.8 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 94.9 % 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.2 % 97.3 % 96.2 % 95.7 % 94.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.5 % 98.8 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.1 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.9 % 34.9 % 34.4 % 34.1 % 34.2 % 33.1 % 30.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.9 % 19.5 % 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.6 % 17.5 % 16.9 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 29.6 % 29.3 % 29.2 % 29.2 % 28.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 64.8 % 64.4 % 64.6 % 65.5 % 65.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2)A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 16/17
timescale. 
Commissioners are currently reviewing the 'carers offer' overall,
developing a strategy to ensure we maximise the efficiency and
effectiveness of these services

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 15.3 % 17.0 % 17.4 % 17.7 % 18.1 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 89.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 70.6 % 77.4 % 77.5 % 77.9 % 78.3 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 5.9 % 8.3 % 8.7 % 6.8 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar
18

Comments Mar/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 372 340 336 331 316
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 464 455 447 456 405

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.4 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.1 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 80.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.10 11.76 10.67 9.80 9.26 7.62 15.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.09 1.09 1.63 1.09
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 3.0 2.7 2.2 1.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.57 6.57 5.99 5.45 4.90

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 409.16 422.57 426.62 441.28 436.65 700.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2 2 3 4 4
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 406.80 420.20 423.54 437.42 432.79

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 0.91 1.04 2.10

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.90 2.85 2.95 4.07 4.32

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,560 3,439 3,379 3,321 3,253
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,386 1,377 1,378 1,361 1,279
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 468 506 512 492 457

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.6 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 78.5 % 73.8 % 69.3 % 63.9 % 57.9 % 80.0 %

Work is underway to develop this measure further to
better reflect the level & frequency of contact with those
people who have not needed a full reassessment of their
care package but have been seen by adult social care
workers.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.7 % 97.2 % 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.2 % 89.1 % 82.5 % 75.9 % 67.6 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.3 % 61.9 % 57.8 % 52.2 % 46.6 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.3 % 71.5 % 67.7 % 61.7 % 55.3 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 453 433 460 347 427
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 989 747 854 842 954
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 265 186 153 153 192

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 58.5 % 43.0 % 34.0 % 44.0 % 45.0 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 34.0 % 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 4.6 % 48.0 % 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 12.4 % 9.0 % 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date ? 8.0 % 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.3 19.5 19.3 19.4 19.7
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 79.3 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.2 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.9 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 74.4 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 87.2 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

4

P
age 22

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
 Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.2 % 99.1 % 98.2 % 97.7 % 97.4 % 96.8 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 94.9 % 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.2 % 97.3 % 96.2 % 95.7 % 94.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.5 % 98.8 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.1 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.9 % 34.9 % 34.4 % 34.1 % 34.2 % 33.1 % 30.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.9 % 19.5 % 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.6 % 17.5 % 16.9 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 29.6 % 29.3 % 29.2 % 29.2 % 28.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 64.8 % 64.4 % 64.6 % 65.5 % 65.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2)A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 16/17
timescale. 
Commissioners are currently reviewing the 'carers offer' overall,
developing a strategy to ensure we maximise the efficiency and
effectiveness of these services

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 15.3 % 17.0 % 17.4 % 17.7 % 18.1 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 89.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 70.6 % 77.4 % 77.5 % 77.9 % 78.3 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 5.9 % 8.3 % 8.7 % 6.8 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar
18

Comments Mar/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 372 340 336 331 316
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 464 455 447 456 405

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.4 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.1 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 80.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.10 11.76 10.67 9.80 9.26 7.62 15.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.09 1.09 1.63 1.09
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 3.0 2.7 2.2 1.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.57 6.57 5.99 5.45 4.90

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 409.16 422.57 426.62 441.28 436.65 700.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2 2 3 4 4
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 406.80 420.20 423.54 437.42 432.79

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 0.91 1.04 2.10

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.90 2.85 2.95 4.07 4.32

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,560 3,439 3,379 3,321 3,253
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,386 1,377 1,378 1,361 1,279
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 468 506 512 492 457

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.6 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 78.5 % 73.8 % 69.3 % 63.9 % 57.9 % 80.0 %

Work is underway to develop this measure further to
better reflect the level & frequency of contact with those
people who have not needed a full reassessment of their
care package but have been seen by adult social care
workers.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.7 % 97.2 % 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.2 % 89.1 % 82.5 % 75.9 % 67.6 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.3 % 61.9 % 57.8 % 52.2 % 46.6 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.3 % 71.5 % 67.7 % 61.7 % 55.3 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 453 433 460 347 427
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 989 747 854 842 954
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 265 186 153 153 192

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 58.5 % 43.0 % 34.0 % 44.0 % 45.0 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 34.0 % 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 4.6 % 48.0 % 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 12.4 % 9.0 % 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date ? 8.0 % 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.3 19.5 19.3 19.4 19.7
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 79.3 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.2 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.9 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 74.4 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 87.2 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

5

P
age 23

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col22')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col23')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col25')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col26')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col29')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
 Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.2 % 99.1 % 98.2 % 97.7 % 97.4 % 96.8 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 94.9 % 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.2 % 97.3 % 96.2 % 95.7 % 94.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.5 % 98.8 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.1 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.9 % 34.9 % 34.4 % 34.1 % 34.2 % 33.1 % 30.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.9 % 19.5 % 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.6 % 17.5 % 16.9 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 29.6 % 29.3 % 29.2 % 29.2 % 28.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 64.8 % 64.4 % 64.6 % 65.5 % 65.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2)A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 16/17
timescale. 
Commissioners are currently reviewing the 'carers offer' overall,
developing a strategy to ensure we maximise the efficiency and
effectiveness of these services

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 15.3 % 17.0 % 17.4 % 17.7 % 18.1 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 89.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 70.6 % 77.4 % 77.5 % 77.9 % 78.3 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 5.9 % 8.3 % 8.7 % 6.8 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar
18

Comments Mar/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 372 340 336 331 316
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 464 455 447 456 405

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.4 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.1 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 80.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.10 11.76 10.67 9.80 9.26 7.62 15.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.09 1.09 1.63 1.09
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 3.0 2.7 2.2 1.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.57 6.57 5.99 5.45 4.90

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 409.16 422.57 426.62 441.28 436.65 700.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2 2 3 4 4
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 406.80 420.20 423.54 437.42 432.79

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 0.91 1.04 2.10

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.90 2.85 2.95 4.07 4.32

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,560 3,439 3,379 3,321 3,253
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,386 1,377 1,378 1,361 1,279
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 468 506 512 492 457

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.6 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 78.5 % 73.8 % 69.3 % 63.9 % 57.9 % 80.0 %

Work is underway to develop this measure further to
better reflect the level & frequency of contact with those
people who have not needed a full reassessment of their
care package but have been seen by adult social care
workers.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.7 % 97.2 % 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.2 % 89.1 % 82.5 % 75.9 % 67.6 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.3 % 61.9 % 57.8 % 52.2 % 46.6 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.3 % 71.5 % 67.7 % 61.7 % 55.3 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 453 433 460 347 427
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 989 747 854 842 954
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 265 186 153 153 192

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 58.5 % 43.0 % 34.0 % 44.0 % 45.0 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 34.0 % 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 4.6 % 48.0 % 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 12.4 % 9.0 % 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date ? 8.0 % 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.3 19.5 19.3 19.4 19.7
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 79.3 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.2 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.9 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 74.4 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 87.2 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

6

P
age 24

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
 Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.2 % 99.1 % 98.2 % 97.7 % 97.4 % 96.8 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 94.9 % 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.2 % 97.3 % 96.2 % 95.7 % 94.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.5 % 98.8 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.1 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.9 % 34.9 % 34.4 % 34.1 % 34.2 % 33.1 % 30.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.9 % 19.5 % 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.6 % 17.5 % 16.9 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 29.6 % 29.3 % 29.2 % 29.2 % 28.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 64.8 % 64.4 % 64.6 % 65.5 % 65.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2)A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 16/17
timescale. 
Commissioners are currently reviewing the 'carers offer' overall,
developing a strategy to ensure we maximise the efficiency and
effectiveness of these services

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 15.3 % 17.0 % 17.4 % 17.7 % 18.1 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 89.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 70.6 % 77.4 % 77.5 % 77.9 % 78.3 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 5.9 % 8.3 % 8.7 % 6.8 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar
18

Comments Mar/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 372 340 336 331 316
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 464 455 447 456 405

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.4 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.1 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 80.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.10 11.76 10.67 9.80 9.26 7.62 15.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.09 1.09 1.63 1.09
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 3.0 2.7 2.2 1.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.57 6.57 5.99 5.45 4.90

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 409.16 422.57 426.62 441.28 436.65 700.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2 2 3 4 4
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 406.80 420.20 423.54 437.42 432.79

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 0.91 1.04 2.10

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.90 2.85 2.95 4.07 4.32

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 16/17

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,560 3,439 3,379 3,321 3,253
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,386 1,377 1,378 1,361 1,279
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 468 506 512 492 457

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.6 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 78.5 % 73.8 % 69.3 % 63.9 % 57.9 % 80.0 %

Work is underway to develop this measure further to
better reflect the level & frequency of contact with those
people who have not needed a full reassessment of their
care package but have been seen by adult social care
workers.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.7 % 97.2 % 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.2 % 89.1 % 82.5 % 75.9 % 67.6 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.3 % 61.9 % 57.8 % 52.2 % 46.6 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.3 % 71.5 % 67.7 % 61.7 % 55.3 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Target Mar18 Comments Mar18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 453 433 460 347 427
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 989 747 854 842 954
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 265 186 153 153 192

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 58.5 % 43.0 % 34.0 % 44.0 % 45.0 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 34.0 % 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 4.6 % 48.0 % 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 12.4 % 9.0 % 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date ? 8.0 % 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.3 19.5 19.3 19.4 19.7
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 79.3 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.2 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.9 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 74.4 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 87.2 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 16/17

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Comments 2016/17

7

P
age 25



Strategic Risk Summary  Adult Social Care

SR7.1
Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from abuse
neglect in situations that potentially could have been predicted
and prevented.

Willcox, Margaret High 20 Moderate 10 High 15 High 15 High 15

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk

Jun17
Residual Risk
Sep17

Residual Risk
Dec17

Residual Risk
Mar18

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

8

P
age 26

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col13')


Public Health HOSC

Quarter Four 2017/18

Produced by the Performance and Improvement Team

Key to symbols

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Reporting Basis

Year to
Date

Performance accumulated over the
year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12
month period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in
time

1

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

19 128 158 226 197

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.  Over the first year of delivery a
total of 709 people accessing the service have seen their mental wellbeing improve.

The drop in numbers that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal
differences e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or
post Xmas stress/debt.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 75.0 % 82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 %

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

The drop in the % that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal differences
e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or post Xmas
stress/debt

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

? 31.7 % 71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 %

This is a new indicator (from 2017/18). During 2017/18 we are collecting baseline data
from which to agree targets for 2018/19. Commissioners are working with the provider to
agree what data should be included to ensure performance is reflected accurately and
consistently.
In quarter 3 we agreed that 'significant risk factor improvement' will include:

4 week smoking quits
Increases in physical activity levels of at least 30 minutes per week
Reduction in alcohol intake by at least half or to meet Govt. guidelines
Loss of at least 3% of body weight (or at least 5% for those accessing weight management
on referral)

83% of people accessing the Service in Q4 have achieved significant risk factor
improvement which demonstrates that the service is having a significant impact on those
that it supports.  This means that 17% have not seen a significant improvement.
However, this does not mean that no improvement has been made.   Of the 17% that did
not meet the threshold for significant improvement 70% of these made some improvement
toward their behavioural goal

% of customers who quit for
4 weeks

Bigger is
Better

? 45.0 % 49.0 % 51.0 % 55.0 %

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 which equates to an 83% quit rate which is a significant
achievement  GP and pharmacy provision is in line with the national average rate of
50%.

Total number of smokers
that have achieved a
successful 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,045 1,125 283 564 878

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 and with a 83% quit rate which is a significant achievement.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

56.4 % 54.7 % 59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.0 %

Local uptake of NHS Health Checks has fallen slightly on Q3; however it
is still above the regional and national average (based on the latest
available data). The slight fall may be partly explained by the weather
during Q4 which may have impacted on attendance levels.

Number of enquiries to
Gloucestershire Domestic
Abuse Support Service
(GDASS) helpdesk

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

1,263 1,231 1,033 1,108 1,094 600

Number of people using
the community based
support drop in service

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

1,195 2,362 1,743 1,734 1,563 1,450

Community Connection :
Attendance level numbers
at older people hub
activities

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

14,103 13,636 16,359 17,548 15,065 19,000
The figures for the older people schemes have gone down but this
usually fluctuates when the seasons change.

Community Connection :
Numbers attending group
work within community
based support services

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

729 1,161 1,053 1,525 1,527 450

Housing Related Support :
Numbers accessing one to
one support

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

1,564 1,495 1,286 1,464 1,514 1,500

% of Gloucestershire
Domestic Abuse Support
Service (GDASS) helpdesk
enquiries where needs are
met by the helpdesk

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

55.0 % 50.8 % 55.0 % 54.0 % 49.0 %

Number of people referred
from helpdesk and
receiving a GDASS support
package

Bigger is
Better

22 19 17

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

? ? 56.0 % 79.0 % 86.9 %

The narrative here supports the results for PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii. Improvement
towards target of 100% continues from 56% in Q1 to 79% in Q2 with 86.9% in Q3. This
has been achieved through implementation of a robust administration process to ensure
checks are offered within timeframe. 
A small number of reviews are completed outside of the 912 month period. In Q3 the
percentage of universal partnership plus families who received a completed 12 month
review was 98% and the UP % completed was 100% with the Universal % completed
94.8%. Checks that take place outside of the 912 month time frame may be due to the
specifics needs of the individual child, a number of children who are universal partnership
plus are complex need children (e.g. with disabilities) who are seen by paediatricians and
do not necessarily require a routine check to identify and refer for delayed development.
If a family identified as UP or UPP does not attend an arranged review, they are pursued
by the service and followed up intensively with an opportunistic visit to ensure an
assessment takes place. If there were other known agencies or organisations involved with
the family, the service would communicate with them about recent contact to ascertain if
there are any problems, concerns or a change of details.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year ? ? 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 %

Q3 rate of 53% shows continued improvement from Q1 (48.4%) and Q2 (49.2%) but
remains below the local aim of 58%. From Q2 2017/18 GCC commissioned a revised
Breastfeeding Peer Support service under a new service specification that targets
geographical areas with lower rates of uptake  more deprived wards of Gloucester,
Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean with lower breastfeeding rates and increased numbers
of younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. Further initiatives contributing to
increasing Breastfeeding rates are being facilitated by the new Gloucestershire Infant
Feeding Strategic partnership.

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? 515.0 515.0 600.0
Annual data for 2016 (updated annually). The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 45 745 543 798 1,256 1,000
This represents contemporary data and includes brief interventions
undertaken by pharmacies

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.4 % 10.2 % 9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 3.7 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

38.2 42.2 41.8 35.6 31.0 19.5

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 92.8 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

75.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

? 43.6 % 47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 24.0 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Supporting People  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Supporting People  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Mar16 Mar17 Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

2

P
age 28

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

19 128 158 226 197

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.  Over the first year of delivery a
total of 709 people accessing the service have seen their mental wellbeing improve.

The drop in numbers that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal
differences e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or
post Xmas stress/debt.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 75.0 % 82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 %

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users. 

The drop in the % that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal differences
e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or post Xmas
stress/debt

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

? 31.7 % 71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 %

This is a new indicator (from 2017/18). During 2017/18 we are collecting baseline data
from which to agree targets for 2018/19. Commissioners are working with the provider to
agree what data should be included to ensure performance is reflected accurately and
consistently.
In quarter 3 we agreed that 'significant risk factor improvement' will include:

4 week smoking quits
Increases in physical activity levels of at least 30 minutes per week
Reduction in alcohol intake by at least half or to meet Govt. guidelines
Loss of at least 3% of body weight (or at least 5% for those accessing weight management
on referral)

83% of people accessing the Service in Q4 have achieved significant risk factor
improvement which demonstrates that the service is having a significant impact on those
that it supports.  This means that 17% have not seen a significant improvement. 
However, this does not mean that no improvement has been made.   Of the 17% that did
not meet the threshold for significant improvement 70% of these made some improvement
toward their behavioural goal

% of customers who quit for
4 weeks

Bigger is
Better

? 45.0 % 49.0 % 51.0 % 55.0 %

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 which equates to an 83% quit rate which is a significant
achievement  GP and pharmacy provision is in line with the national average rate of
50%.

Total number of smokers
that have achieved a
successful 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,045 1,125 283 564 878

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 and with a 83% quit rate which is a significant achievement.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

56.4 % 54.7 % 59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.0 %

Local uptake of NHS Health Checks has fallen slightly on Q3; however it
is still above the regional and national average (based on the latest
available data). The slight fall may be partly explained by the weather
during Q4 which may have impacted on attendance levels.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

? ? 56.0 % 79.0 % 86.9 %

The narrative here supports the results for PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii. Improvement
towards target of 100% continues from 56% in Q1 to 79% in Q2 with 86.9% in Q3. This
has been achieved through implementation of a robust administration process to ensure
checks are offered within timeframe.
A small number of reviews are completed outside of the 912 month period. In Q3 the
percentage of universal partnership plus families who received a completed 12 month
review was 98% and the UP % completed was 100% with the Universal % completed
94.8%. Checks that take place outside of the 912 month time frame may be due to the
specifics needs of the individual child, a number of children who are universal partnership
plus are complex need children (e.g. with disabilities) who are seen by paediatricians and
do not necessarily require a routine check to identify and refer for delayed development.
If a family identified as UP or UPP does not attend an arranged review, they are pursued
by the service and followed up intensively with an opportunistic visit to ensure an
assessment takes place. If there were other known agencies or organisations involved with
the family, the service would communicate with them about recent contact to ascertain if
there are any problems, concerns or a change of details.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year ? ? 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 %

Q3 rate of 53% shows continued improvement from Q1 (48.4%) and Q2 (49.2%) but
remains below the local aim of 58%. From Q2 2017/18 GCC commissioned a revised
Breastfeeding Peer Support service under a new service specification that targets
geographical areas with lower rates of uptake  more deprived wards of Gloucester,
Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean with lower breastfeeding rates and increased numbers
of younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. Further initiatives contributing to
increasing Breastfeeding rates are being facilitated by the new Gloucestershire Infant
Feeding Strategic partnership.

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? 515.0 515.0 600.0
Annual data for 2016 (updated annually). The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 45 745 543 798 1,256 1,000
This represents contemporary data and includes brief interventions
undertaken by pharmacies

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.4 % 10.2 % 9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 3.7 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

38.2 42.2 41.8 35.6 31.0 19.5

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 92.8 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

75.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

? 43.6 % 47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 24.0 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Mar16 Mar17 Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

3

P
age 29

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

19 128 158 226 197

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.  Over the first year of delivery a
total of 709 people accessing the service have seen their mental wellbeing improve.

The drop in numbers that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal
differences e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or
post Xmas stress/debt.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 75.0 % 82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 %

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users. 

The drop in the % that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal differences
e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or post Xmas
stress/debt

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

? 31.7 % 71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 %

This is a new indicator (from 2017/18). During 2017/18 we are collecting baseline data
from which to agree targets for 2018/19. Commissioners are working with the provider to
agree what data should be included to ensure performance is reflected accurately and
consistently.
In quarter 3 we agreed that 'significant risk factor improvement' will include:

4 week smoking quits
Increases in physical activity levels of at least 30 minutes per week
Reduction in alcohol intake by at least half or to meet Govt. guidelines
Loss of at least 3% of body weight (or at least 5% for those accessing weight management
on referral)

83% of people accessing the Service in Q4 have achieved significant risk factor
improvement which demonstrates that the service is having a significant impact on those
that it supports.  This means that 17% have not seen a significant improvement. 
However, this does not mean that no improvement has been made.   Of the 17% that did
not meet the threshold for significant improvement 70% of these made some improvement
toward their behavioural goal

% of customers who quit for
4 weeks

Bigger is
Better

? 45.0 % 49.0 % 51.0 % 55.0 %

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 which equates to an 83% quit rate which is a significant
achievement  GP and pharmacy provision is in line with the national average rate of
50%.

Total number of smokers
that have achieved a
successful 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,045 1,125 283 564 878

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 and with a 83% quit rate which is a significant achievement.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

56.4 % 54.7 % 59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.0 %

Local uptake of NHS Health Checks has fallen slightly on Q3; however it
is still above the regional and national average (based on the latest
available data). The slight fall may be partly explained by the weather
during Q4 which may have impacted on attendance levels.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

? ? 56.0 % 79.0 % 86.9 %

The narrative here supports the results for PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii. Improvement
towards target of 100% continues from 56% in Q1 to 79% in Q2 with 86.9% in Q3. This
has been achieved through implementation of a robust administration process to ensure
checks are offered within timeframe.
A small number of reviews are completed outside of the 912 month period. In Q3 the
percentage of universal partnership plus families who received a completed 12 month
review was 98% and the UP % completed was 100% with the Universal % completed
94.8%. Checks that take place outside of the 912 month time frame may be due to the
specifics needs of the individual child, a number of children who are universal partnership
plus are complex need children (e.g. with disabilities) who are seen by paediatricians and
do not necessarily require a routine check to identify and refer for delayed development.
If a family identified as UP or UPP does not attend an arranged review, they are pursued
by the service and followed up intensively with an opportunistic visit to ensure an
assessment takes place. If there were other known agencies or organisations involved with
the family, the service would communicate with them about recent contact to ascertain if
there are any problems, concerns or a change of details.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year ? ? 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 %

Q3 rate of 53% shows continued improvement from Q1 (48.4%) and Q2 (49.2%) but
remains below the local aim of 58%. From Q2 2017/18 GCC commissioned a revised
Breastfeeding Peer Support service under a new service specification that targets
geographical areas with lower rates of uptake  more deprived wards of Gloucester,
Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean with lower breastfeeding rates and increased numbers
of younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. Further initiatives contributing to
increasing Breastfeeding rates are being facilitated by the new Gloucestershire Infant
Feeding Strategic partnership.

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? 515.0 515.0 600.0
Annual data for 2016 (updated annually). The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 45 745 543 798 1,256 1,000
This represents contemporary data and includes brief interventions
undertaken by pharmacies

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.4 % 10.2 % 9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 3.7 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

38.2 42.2 41.8 35.6 31.0 19.5

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 92.8 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

75.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

? 43.6 % 47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 24.0 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Mar16 Mar17 Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

4

P
age 30

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

19 128 158 226 197

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.  Over the first year of delivery a
total of 709 people accessing the service have seen their mental wellbeing improve.

The drop in numbers that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal
differences e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or
post Xmas stress/debt.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 75.0 % 82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 %

This is a new indicator for the service for 17/18.  Data  over the 4 quarters will be used to
set targets for 18/19.

The data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve a
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.  This demonstrates
that although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also
positively impact on the overall wellbeing of service users. 

The drop in the % that demonstrated an improvement may be due to seasonal differences
e.g. the severe weather conditions that were experienced during this quarter or post Xmas
stress/debt

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

? 31.7 % 71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 %

This is a new indicator (from 2017/18). During 2017/18 we are collecting baseline data
from which to agree targets for 2018/19. Commissioners are working with the provider to
agree what data should be included to ensure performance is reflected accurately and
consistently.
In quarter 3 we agreed that 'significant risk factor improvement' will include:

4 week smoking quits
Increases in physical activity levels of at least 30 minutes per week
Reduction in alcohol intake by at least half or to meet Govt. guidelines
Loss of at least 3% of body weight (or at least 5% for those accessing weight management
on referral)

83% of people accessing the Service in Q4 have achieved significant risk factor
improvement which demonstrates that the service is having a significant impact on those
that it supports.  This means that 17% have not seen a significant improvement. 
However, this does not mean that no improvement has been made.   Of the 17% that did
not meet the threshold for significant improvement 70% of these made some improvement
toward their behavioural goal

% of customers who quit for
4 weeks

Bigger is
Better

? 45.0 % 49.0 % 51.0 % 55.0 %

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 which equates to an 83% quit rate which is a significant
achievement  GP and pharmacy provision is in line with the national average rate of
50%.

Total number of smokers
that have achieved a
successful 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 1,045 1,125 283 564 878

This indicator is reported a quarter behind to be in line with our national reporting
requirements.  the number of quitters includes those supported by the Healthy Lifestyles
Service and those supported by GP's and pharmacy's.  the total number of quitters
supported by HLS was 188 and with a 83% quit rate which is a significant achievement.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

56.4 % 54.7 % 59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.0 %

Local uptake of NHS Health Checks has fallen slightly on Q3; however it
is still above the regional and national average (based on the latest
available data). The slight fall may be partly explained by the weather
during Q4 which may have impacted on attendance levels.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

? ? 56.0 % 79.0 % 86.9 %

The narrative here supports the results for PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii. Improvement
towards target of 100% continues from 56% in Q1 to 79% in Q2 with 86.9% in Q3. This
has been achieved through implementation of a robust administration process to ensure
checks are offered within timeframe.
A small number of reviews are completed outside of the 912 month period. In Q3 the
percentage of universal partnership plus families who received a completed 12 month
review was 98% and the UP % completed was 100% with the Universal % completed
94.8%. Checks that take place outside of the 912 month time frame may be due to the
specifics needs of the individual child, a number of children who are universal partnership
plus are complex need children (e.g. with disabilities) who are seen by paediatricians and
do not necessarily require a routine check to identify and refer for delayed development.
If a family identified as UP or UPP does not attend an arranged review, they are pursued
by the service and followed up intensively with an opportunistic visit to ensure an
assessment takes place. If there were other known agencies or organisations involved with
the family, the service would communicate with them about recent contact to ascertain if
there are any problems, concerns or a change of details.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year ? ? 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 %

Q3 rate of 53% shows continued improvement from Q1 (48.4%) and Q2 (49.2%) but
remains below the local aim of 58%. From Q2 2017/18 GCC commissioned a revised
Breastfeeding Peer Support service under a new service specification that targets
geographical areas with lower rates of uptake  more deprived wards of Gloucester,
Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean with lower breastfeeding rates and increased numbers
of younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. Further initiatives contributing to
increasing Breastfeeding rates are being facilitated by the new Gloucestershire Infant
Feeding Strategic partnership.

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? 515.0 515.0 600.0
Annual data for 2016 (updated annually). The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 45 745 543 798 1,256 1,000
This represents contemporary data and includes brief interventions
undertaken by pharmacies

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.4 % 10.2 % 9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 3.7 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

38.2 42.2 41.8 35.6 31.0 19.5

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 92.8 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

75.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

? 43.6 % 47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 24.0 %

Performance is green against target but there is a downward trend. This
is mainly due to transition to the new contract which is typical, and
2017/18 targets were reset to reflect this and the changes to
specification and contract value .Targets are not comparable to 2016/17
targets for this reason. We expect performance to improve over time and
will be resetting future targets to reflect this. N.B  These indicators
include a time lag so impact of transition is seen for longer than
contemporaneous indicators.

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Comments Mar18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Comments Dec17

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Mar16 Mar17 Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18
Target Mar
18

Comments Mar18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

5

P
age 31

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col22')


T
his page is intentionally left blank



June 2018  1 

Gloucestershire Health and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8



Report Title 

  

Gloucestershire CCG Performance report  

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee – June 2018 

Purpose of Report 

  

  

The performance framework report provides the Committee with an overview of Gloucestershire CCG 

performance against the ‘in year’ organisational objectives 2018/19.  This report is broken down into four 

sections of the GCCG performance framework:  

 

• Better Care 

• Better Health 

• Leadership 

• Staff 

Is this for information 

or decision? 

  

This Report is for information. 

Authors 

  

Mary Hutton, Accountable Office, GCCG 

Anna Round, Information Manager, GCCG 

  

Key Issues:   

A full summary of performance against all national and local standards as reported to GCCG Governing Body is included within the 

scorecard for the relevant section of the report. An overarching GCCG performance dashboard is included as a supporting appendix; 

providing an overview of all key national and local targets. 

  

Recommendations to the Committee:  

We recommend that this report be noted. 

Financial/Resource Implications:  

Financial implications considered in provider contracts.  

2 

P
age 34



Contents 

1.0 Scorecard    

 

2.0 Executive Summary  

 2.1 Leadership 

 2.2 Better Care 

 2.3 Sustainability 

 2.4 Better Health 

 

  

3.0 Better Care 

 3.1 Constitution updates  

 reported by exception. 

4.0 Leadership 

 4.1 Measurement  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

This document is a highlight report which is presented to an overview of current CCG and provider 

performance across a range of national priorities and local standards.  

Whilst inevitably this report focuses on areas of concern it should be noted that Gloucestershire is currently 

achieving the majority of the local and national performance standards.  

3 

P
age 35



1.0 Scorecard: CCG Performance Overview 

Better Health 
Good 

Better Care 
Requires Improvement 

Leadership 
Good 

Sustainability 
Good 

CCG Improvement and 
Assessment Framework 

4 

P
age 36



2.1 Executive Summary – Leadership 

This domain assesses the quality of the CCG’s leadership, the quality of its plans, how the CCG 
works with its partners, and the governance arrangements that the CCG has in place to ensure it 
acts with probity, for example in managing conflicts of interest.  
 

2.1.1 Staff engagement : Robust culture and Leadership Sustainability (OD Plan) 
 

2.1.2 Probity and Corporate Governance:  Full governance compliance 

2.1.3 Effectiveness of working relationships in the local system: Effectiveness of working 
relationships in the local system  
 

2.1.4 

 
Quality of CCG leadership:  Review of the effectiveness of culture, leadership sustainability 
and an oversight of quality assurance.   

5 

P
age 37



2.2 Executive Summary – Better Care 

This domain focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional standards, 
and outcomes, including in important clinical areas. 
 

Overall  

Rating 

2.2.1 Planned Care 
 

2.2.2 Unscheduled Care 

2.2.23 Cancer   
 

2.2.4 Mental Health   
 

2.2.4 

 
Learning disability   

2.2.5 

 
Maternity   
 

6 

P
age 38



2.3 Executive Summary - Sustainability 

This domain looks at how the CCG is remaining in financial balance, and is 
securing good value for patients and the public from the money it spends  
 

Rating 

2.3.1 Year to date surplus variance to plan (%) 

2.3.2 Forecast surplus to plan (%variance) 

2.3.3 Forecast running costs in comparison to running cost allocation (%) 

2.3.4 

 

Forecast savings delivery in comparison to plan (%) 

2.3.5 

 

Year to date BPPC performance in comparison to 95% target (%) 

2.3.6 

 

Cash drawdown in line with planned profile (%) 

2.3.7 Forecast capital spend in comparison to plan (%) 

 
7 

P
age 39



2.4 Executive Summary – Better Health (1 of 2) 

This section looks at how the CCG is contributing towards 
improving the health and wellbeing of its population, and 
bending the demand curve. 

Current CCG Performance 

Period National Glos 

CCG 

What 

is 

Good? 

2.4.1 Smoking:  Maternal smoking at delivery: The percentage of 

women who were smokers at the time of delivery, out of the number 

of maternities  

Q3 17/18 11% 11.2% Low is 

Good 

2.4.2 Child Obesity: Number of children in Year 6 (aged 10-11 years) 

classified as overweight or obese in the National Child 

Measurement Programme (NCMP) attending participating state 

maintained schools in England as a proportion of all children 

measured.  

13/14 to 

15/16 

33.7% 31.8% Low is 

Good 

 

2.4.3 Diabetes:  Three (HbA1c, cholesterol and blood pressure) for 

adults and one (HbA1c) for children: The percentage of diabetes 

patients that have achieved all 3 of the NICE-recommended 

treatment targets 

2016/17 39.7% 36.4% High is 

Good 

2.4.4 

 
Falls: Age-sex standardised rate of emergency hospital admissions 

for injuries due to falls in persons aged 65+ per 100,000 population  

Q2 17/18 1,961 1,734 Low is 

Good 

2.4.5 Personalisation and choice:  Indicators relating to utilisation of 

NHS e-referral service to enable choice at first routine elective 

referral. 

01/ 2018 57.5% 58.2% 
 

High is 

Good 

These indicators show the latest position and are updated quarterly 

8 

P
age 40



2.4 Executive Summary – Better Health (2 of 2) 

This section looks at how the CCG is contributing towards 
improving the health and wellbeing of its population, and 
bending the demand curve. 

Current CCG Performance 

Period National  Glos 

CCG 

What is 

Good? 

2.4.6 Personal health budgets Per 100k population Q3 

17/18 

36.46 332 High is 

Good 

2.4.7 Percentage of deaths which take place in hospital Q2 

16/17 

47.1% 41.4% Low is 

Good 

2.4.8 People with a long-term condition feeling supported to 

manage their condition(s). 

Q3 

16/17 

64.3% 67.8% High is 

Good 

2.4.9 Health inequalities: Inequality in avoidable emergency 

admissions  for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions 

Q2 

17/18 

910 901 Low is 

Good 

 

2.4.10 Health inequalities: Inequality in avoidable emergency 

admissions  for urgent care sensitive conditions 

Q1 

17/18 

2000 2012 Low is 

Good 

 

2.4.11 Appropriate prescribing:  Antibiotics and prescribing of broad 

spectrum antibiotics in primary care  

 

12/ 

2017 

8.8 9.4 N/A 

2.4.12 Carers:  Quality of life of carers   2017 0.6 0.7 N/A 

9 

P
age 41



Cancer 

Dashboard 

(YEAR TO 

DATE) 

(CCG) 

2 Week 
Waits 

2 Week Waits 
Breast 

31 Day Waits 31 Day Waits 
Surgery  

86.9% 91.4% 

31 Day Waits 
Drugs  

31 Day Waits 
Radiotherapy 

62 Day GP 
Referral 

62 Day  
Screening 

62 Day  
Upgrade 

91.6% 96.9% 100% 100% 80.4% 100% 87.0% 

Planned Care 

(CCG)  

RTT Incomplete <18 weeks 
 

Diagnostics >6 
weeks 
Apr 18 

Diagnostics >6 weeks 
YEAR TO DATE 

1.3% 1.3% 

3.0 Better Care:  

National Reporting Suspended 

10 

Unscheduled 

Care  

(CCG / 

SWASFT) 

4 Hour A&E  
May 18 

4 Hour A&E   
YEAR TO DATE 

Category 1 
Ambulance 

May 18 

Category 1 Ambulance 
YEAR TO DATE * 

91.6% 91.8% 8.4 mins 8.5 mins 

Delayed Transfers of 

Care (DToC) 

Apr 18 

2.1% 

P
age 42



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care: Pre Hospital 

Out of Hours Attendances 

111 Call Volume 111 Disposition 

Ambulance – Cat 1 

11 

P
age 43



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care: In Hospital 

A&E 4 hr Performance GHFT AVG LOS 

GCS AVG LOS Delayed Transfers of Care 

12 

P
age 44



  

 

 

 

In May 2018 the Trust surpassed the 

STF trajectories (90%) to meet the 4 

hour standard with a performance of 

91.6%.  Year to date position is 91.8%. 

 

The A&E Delivery Board have 

refreshed the 4 hour improvement plan 

with 3 key focus areas: 

 

• Community attendance avoidance 

• ED admission avoidance 

• Effective discharge and flow 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E  

Top Line Messages: 

13 

P
age 45



• System work plans and bi-weekly senior operational meetings have been developed for each 
these three areas. The groups are focused on delivery, providing the forum for system-wide 
resolution of inter-organisational challenges which inhibit service delivery or an effective 
patient journey. This work is underpinned by collaboration and mutual ownership of the 
patient journey and performance.  
 

• Monthly dashboards will offer system wide visibility of performance with A&E Delivery Board 
receiving a provider led update each month, focusing on a core scheme.   
 

• Written updates for the 11 focus schemes will be received monthly and exception reports for 
the remaining 50. 
 

• As a system we are reviewing our frailty provision to ensure as many patients as possible are 
support in the community and, where acute attendance is the most appropriate intervention, 
patients are rapidly supported to return to their normal place of residence. 
 

• A&E Delivery Board is delivering improved performance through collaboration and reducing 
the ‘gaps’ between providers. Some of this is process driven, other aspects are cultural, 
particularly having understanding of the role / skills of other professional groups, viewing 
performance through the lens of pathway rather than individual organisation and 
understanding where boundaries are actually artificial. 
 
 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E Key Actions (1 of 2) 

14 

P
age 46



Other actions include: 
 
• Development of pathways which enable General Practitioner admissions direct to Acute Care 

Unit 
• Implementation of telephone support for any GP and ambulance crews wanting to admit a 

patient.  Support will be provided by the acute physician, accessing the bookable AEC where 
appropriate  

• The Complex Care and Home Model for Gloucester and Cheltenham localities is continuing to 
deliver three months after go live. 

• Introduction of Trop T testing 
• Development of a business case to support delivery of an all age mental health liaison service 
• Weekly cross provider Multidisciplinary Team meetings to support patient flow 
• Implementation of the Ambulance joint plan to support performance recovery 
 
On Tuesday 8th May a new Acute Medical Initial Assessment unit (AMIA) was launched at GRH. 
The purpose of the AMIA is to provide rapid assessment by a Consultant or Senior Decision 
Maker who will either see, treat and discharge directly from the AMIA, or alternatively, stream 
the patient to the most appropriate pathway. It is anticipated that the above will enable GHT to 
reduce potentially avoidable admissions and facilitate the right patient, right place, first time.  

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E Key Actions (2 of 2) 

15 

P
age 47



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance  

Top Line Messages: 
 
 

 

CCG performance in Category 1 for May was 8.3 

minutes against the target of 7 minutes which is an 

improvement on April's position of 8.7 minutes. Year 

to date position is 8.5 minutes.  SWAST Performance 

was 8.4. 

 

Key Actions: 

 

• Increase the percentage of CAT3 & 4 calls subject 

to clinical validation (target 60% downgrade); 

• Development of local investment case to support 

case worker support for high intensity users, 

impacting winter 2018/19  

• Falls; 

• Prevention; review of existing training 

support for care homes and accessibility of 

equipment & Identify further training needs. 

• Response Model; further development of 

deployment model – fire service to support 

fallers; SWASFT / fire service sign up to 

model and governance. Go live – Q2 

2018/19. 

• Onward care, support and guidance; ensure 

fire service have access to SPCA / 

brokerage to organise onward support. 

 

16 

P
age 48



3.21 Unscheduled Care – Delayed Transfers of Care 

Top Line Messages: 
 
 

The Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC) performance at GHT 

improved from a rate of 2.3% in March to 2.1% in April.  2G 

performance  also improved in April with a rate of 2.7% 

compared to the previous month which was 3.2%.  Reducing 

delayed transfers has been a key focus of recent national 

policies, such as the Better Care Fund (a pooled budget to help 

councils and NHS organisations to plan and work together to 

deliver local services). The target for 2018/19 is set at no more 

than 3.5% of all hospital bed days.  

 

Key Actions:  

Daily SAFER navigation meetings being held to promote flow 

and unblock discharges (7 wards involved) issues to be 

escalated to the weekly senior partnership meeting held in 

conjunction with a senior  sign off of DTOC to enable 

understanding of actions for acute and community  

Senior partnership sign off of DTOC (health only) to enable 

understanding of actions for acute and community  

Navigation meetings will feed into senior partnership meetings 

to escalation any recurrent issues identified which are 

disrupting the pathway. 

A Top ten list of operational standards across the pathway is 

being developed for all partners – the standards will 

encompass how long each step of the pathway should take.  

These standards have been developed and are currently under 

discussion. All partners to support.  

A proposal is being developed to look at the establishment of a 

winter pressures ward at Chapel House Nursing Home, the 

proposal will offer additional capacity  and  the paper will also 

focus  on the quality and governance aspects of the ward 

development. 

Weekly escalation calls to discuss blocked patients 

17 

P
age 49



3.3 System Overview Planned Care: 

Referral Trends Diagnostics 

Note: As Governing Body members are aware, due to the ongoing issues in relation the TrakCare Patient Administration system, RTT 
performance is not currently being reported. A recovery plan has been agreed with the Trust. 

18 

P
age 50



3.4 Planned Care – Diagnostics >6 weeks (1 of 2) 

 

 

The CCG's performance has declined in April 

and exceeded the 1.0% threshold with a 

performance of 1.3%.  GHT have continued to 

perform under the target with a performance 

of 0.6%.   

 

There were 121 over 6 week breaches in April 

2018 of which  77 were at providers other than 

GHT.  These are broken down as follows: GP 

Care – Non-Obstetric Ultrasound (27 

breaches), Great Western Hospital – 

Colonoscopy (3), CT (11), MRI (18), University 

Hospitals Bristol – Echocardiography (2), MRI 

(10). 

 

Overall waiting list numbers for the CCG 

increased from March by 2.2% and CCG 

activity for April decreased  by 0.4% from 

March.  

Top Line Messages: 

19 

P
age 51



Actions: 
 
UHB MRI breaches: there are ongoing issues with capacity.   Additional lists have been arranged 
where possible.  The 6 week trajectory is being monitored weekly and there are further plans to 
carry out capacity and demand modelling using the IMAS models to ensure assess whether 
adequate capacity is available. 
 
Great Western breaches: RAPs are being pulled together and will be shared with CCGs shortly. 
RAPS will contain a number of options for improving performance in the short-term including the 
use of a mobile diagnostics unit. GWH have assured that the recruitment of 10 additional 
radiographers, due to commence work at GWH September 2018, will resolve DM01 performance 
issues in the long term.  Improved patient flow within GWH ED has contributed to improvements 
elsewhere in the hospital.  
 
GP Care breaches: Although within target, Non-Obstetric Ultrasound breaches have been 
sampled and are down to patient choice due to availability at sites.  There have been some staff 
shortages and therefore additional sessions have been carried out in May and June to clear 
backlog.  Staffing levels are now back to normal. 
 

3.4 Planned Care – Diagnostics >6 weeks (2 of 2) 

20 

P
age 52



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD April 2018 

2WW (GP Ref’d) 2WW (Breast) 

21 

P
age 53



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD April 2018 

31 day  31 day subsequent treatm’t: Surgery 

22 

31 day subsequent treatm’t: Drugs 31 day subsequent treatm’t: Radiotherapy 

P
age 54



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD April 2018 

62 day: Consultant Upgrade 

62 day: GP referral 62 day: Screening 

23 

P
age 55



3.6 Cancer – 2 week waits 

 

 

The CGG performance has declined in 

April 2018 with a performance of 

86.9%, GHT achieving 86.6%.   

 

For the first time in 5 months breast 

2WW has fallen below the 93% target 

with a performance of 91.6% for CCG 

and 91.7% for GHFT. 

 

The recent national issue with breast 

screening is likely to have had an 

impact on public awareness which may 

account for the spike in 2WW referrals 

for breast. 

 

Top Line Messages: 

24 

P
age 56



3.7 Cancer – 62 days  

 

 

 

62-day waits performance has improved to 

80.4% in April 2018 against an agreed 

trajectory target of 82.5%.  This is a marked 

improvement on last month when 

performance was 76.8%. 

 

GHFT's position was 80.5%, an 

improvement on March’s position of 78.1%.  

 

 

104 Day Breaches 

 

There were 8 over 104-day breaches 

reported in April 2018 which continues the 

downward trend from previous months. 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

 
 
 

25 

P
age 57



3.7 Cancer – Key Actions – 2 Week Cancer & 62 day  

26 

• STT colonoscopy went live 29th May.  2WW capacity released will be used to clear all 

2WW backlogs in the first instance and right size capacity to demand in a sustainable way 

for the future. 

• GHFT submitted additional funding proposal to support Upper and Lower GI growth 

issues and help sustain STT pathways with additional short term capacity, currently 

awaiting approval from NHSE. 

• Colorectal masterclass scheduled for Sept 18 with a further 4 classes planned over the 

rest of the year. 

• New 2WW forms have been implemented and their impact and compliance will be 

assessed in September 18. 

• GHFT has undertaken additional recruitment of  cancer tracker administrators 

• GHFT liaising with neighbouring Trusts to improve inter-Trust transfer processes and 

breach sharing agreements. 

• Lung Faster Diagnosis Project commenced following funding allocation. 

• CCG financially supporting the My Health Record / Prostate Cancer Surveillance Tracker 

to aid improvement in performance and patient safety within urology. 

• One new urologist starts in October 2018 with a second starting next year, however the 

locum consultant will be maintained in the interim.   

P
age 58



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health - IAPT 

Access Recovery 

Referral to Treatment - 6 wks Referral to Treatment - 18 wks 

27 

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

2017/18 2018/19 Target

IAPT Access - 2017/18 to 2018/19 

P
age 59



3.8 Mental Health - IAPT 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

Performance for IAPT Access & Recovery has 

improved in April 2018 and has achieved both 

targets, likely due to the additional staffing which 

was funded by Commissioners to increase 

capacity and the introduction of digital therapy 

options (Silver Cloud for Step 2 interventions and 

IESO for Step 3 interventions). The 100 longest 

waiters were approached first in a rolling 

programme.  Both options should help improve 

service resilience and capacity. 

 

Whilst there continues to be challenges with staff 

recruitment, which is a significant issue at a 

national level, progress has been made and 

there has been a re-introduction of agency staff 

following the additional funding from the CCG.  

For 2018/19 there is additional £533k full year 

recurrent costs to meet the planned access rate 

trajectory of 19%, including the additional staffing 

capacity required, digital provision cost for 3% 

activity towards total access rate.  There is an 

existing workforce plan in place and 2g have 10 

training plans for this coming year (6 HI/4PWP).  

In addition 2g are looking at procuring an 

alternative training provider to meet the 

workforce growth requirements.  It is anticipated 

that the additional investment agreed between 

the CCG/2g will be sufficient to deliver against 

targets. 

 

Referral to Treatment within 6 weeks  has 

improved significantly and is now at 87% in April 

2018.  28 

P
age 60



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health – Children & 

Young People 

29 

2018/19 April May June/Q1 July August
September

/Q2
October November

December

/Q3
January February March/Q4

Children and young people who enter a 

treatment programme to have a care 

coordinator - (Level 3 Services) Target : 

98%

98%

95% accepted referrals receiving initial 

appointment within 4 weeks (excludes 

YOS, substance misuse, inpatient and 

crisis/home treatment and complex 

engagement) (CYPS) - Target 95%
Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 8 weeks , excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment) 

(CYPS) - Target 80%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 10 weeks (excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment) 

(CYPS) - Target 95%

Children and Young People's Mental Health (CYPS)

P
age 61



3.9 Continuing Health Care - CHC Assessments completed  

in 28 days (slide 1 of 2) 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

30 

NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) 

means a package of ongoing care that 

is arranged and funded solely by the 

NHS where the individual has been 

found to have a ‘primary health need.  

 

The 28 day referral time starts from the 

date the CCG  receives any type of 

recorded decision that full consideration 

for NHS CHC is required i.e. a positive 

checklist or other notification of potential 

eligibility and ends at the point the CCG 

makes the decision.  

 

Some of the ongoing reasons identified 

as causing delays are: 

• Accessing Social workers to 

constitute a Multidisciplinary team. 

• Engaging community nursing teams 

to complete nursing assessments. 

• Backlogs, in particular areas, learning 

disability.  

P
age 62



ACTIONS TO ADDRESS THE BACKLOG OF CASES 

• Clinical Manager to monitor weekly the delays, identifying reasons for delays both internally and externally 
and action.  

• Clinical Manager and LD team lead to look at all unallocated cases with a view to prioritising cases.  

•  Information shared with Gloucestershire Council LD team with a view to informing the CCG of their 
priorities.  

• Active CHC cases identified by each of the Local Authority localities (6) and information sent fortnightly to 
each locality lead requesting updates.  This will enable the LA to identify were the greatest pressures are in 
relation to Social work support to the CHC assessment process.  

• Improve recording of delays by: 

– Dedicated admin to run weekly reports of all cases over the 28 day timeframe. 

– Weekly reports to be shared with CHC team leads to action progress  

– Monthly trajectory spreadsheet to map progress 

• Adult Social Care to recruit a further 2 social workers to support CHC assessments. 

• Information to be shared with Adult Social Care fortnightly in relation to delays due to ASC Allocation and 
assessments.    

• Consider what other LD Nurse capacity is available within the CCG to support the CHC process. This has 
been reviewed currently there is no other capacity, business case to be put forward to the CCG requesting 
funding to recruit a minimum of a further two LD Nurse Assessors.  

• Clinical Manager and Lead Commissioner to visit another CCG who have made improvements and are 
meeting the 28 day KPI. (To be arranged). 

• Joint training with the local authority and a greater emphasis on the 28 day time frame. 

 
31 

3.9 Continuing Health Care 
CHC Assessments completed in 28 days (slide 2 of 2) 

P
age 63



3.9 Continuing Health Care - CHC Assessments completed in a  

non acute setting 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

32 

It is preferable for eligibility for NHS 

Continuing Healthcare to be 

considered after discharge from 

hospital when the person’s long-term 

needs are clearer, and for NHS-

funded services to be provided in the 

interim. This pathway was developed 

between CHC along with Adult Social 

Care to support both organisations 

with flow into D2A beds and align the 

CHC National Framework around 

patients not being assessed whilst in 

an acute setting.  

 

The new Discharge to Assess 

pathway commenced on the  9th May 

2016 and now only in exceptional 

circumstances does a CHC checklist 

and full assessment  take place in an 

acute hospital setting within 

Gloucestershire. This pathway for 

CHC and Adult Social Care is working 

well, with those individuals identified 

as requiring a full assessment for NHS 

Continuing Healthcare now taking 

place in a more appropriate setting 

and within the 28 day timeframe.  

P
age 64



Positive Trends in April 
 

Delayed Transfers of Care – The DToC rate was maintained at the March level of 1.4% in April and is still below the NHS 
England target of 3.5%. 
 

Referral To Treatment – Over half of the RTT applicable services are now performing above or are within the amber range of 
the target (90-95%). 
 

Community Hospital Weekend Discharges – The level of weekend discharges increased from the 17/18 average of 8.1 to 8.7 
in April. 
 

MIIU – 4hr performance was consistently good in 17/18 and the year end positon is 99.3% and April showed further 
improvement with performance of 99.4%. Time in the department averaged as 2h 39min, a 14min decrease when compared 
to 17/18 YTD. 

 

33 

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services (Slide 1 of 2) 

P
age 65



Performance Challenges 
RTT:- 

• Performance for 3 of the 8 monitored services is below 90%, the amber threshold for RTT  (% treated within 8 Weeks). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MSKCAT 

• Urgent patients waiting no more than two weeks between referral and being seen is below the 95% target has 
decreased to 84.6% in April. This is the joint lowest level of performance in the past 13 months and is an 11% reduction 
when compared to the 17/18 YTD average. 

ESD  

• Proportion of new patients assessed within 2 days of notification (95% Target) dipped to 83.3% in April which is lower 
that the 17/18 YTD average of 88.6%. 

 

Commissioners are working closely with GCS regarding the above via Clinical Programme Groups and usual contract levers 
such as Performance, Finance and Information meetings and Clinical Quality Review Groups. 

34 

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services (Slide 2 of 2) 

P
age 66



3.11 Performance – Patient Experience 

35 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

GCS

2g

GHT 

Inpatients

GHT        

A&E

FFT Top Line Messages PROMS  
no update 

this month  
GHNHSFT has continued to report strong Friends and Family Test (FFT) response rates which are in excess of national 

averages. GHNHSFT have a Quality Improvement project within the outpatients department which is looking at how the 

FFT results can be improved upon. The patient experience leads will be exploring ways in which this learning can be 

adopted for inpatient use. 

 

GCSNHST overall response rate for the patient FFT has historically been low (typically at around 3.5-4.5% with a target 

of 15%) however an increase in the response rate was evident soon after the process was brought back to internal 

management by the Service Experience Team from an external agency. 

Since October there has been a steady increase in the number of responses. However, there remains some 

inconsistency across services, and whereas some services are consistently receiving high response rates above 30%, 

others are still struggling to achieve the 15% minimum target.  

 

2GNHSFT Patient Experience Team are working to improve the FFT response rate and achieve/surpass the national 

average in Q4. 

  
 

Provider Nat Ave Provider Nat Ave Provider Nat Ave

25.40% 22.10% 27.50% 23.30% 26.60% 24.50%

92% 96% 91% 96% 92% 96%

4% 2% 4% 2% 4% 2%

19.40% 11.60% 19.40% 12.20% 20.30% 13.40%

86% 85% 86% 86% 83% 85%

8% 8% 9% 8% 11% 8%

93% 96% 92% 95% 94% 96%

3% 2% 2% 2% 1% 2%

83% 88% 86% 89% 80% 89%

10% 4% 7% 4% 11% 4%

Jan-18 Feb-18Dec-17

P
age 67



3.12 Performance – South Central Comparison March 18 

36 

P
age 68



4.0 Leadership  (slide 1 of 3)  

Indicator Component 
Measure 

Narrative 

Staff and 

member 

practice 

engagement 

OD Plan 

Staff Survey 

Turnover 

Vacancies 

Sickness 

PDP/Training 

 

• Turnover Rate: The April HR Dashboard highlighted stability in turnover rates 

from December to April, a slight increase from May 2017 to November 2017. April 

has shown a slight increase of turnover rate from the previous month of 1%, the 

same % rate as January 2018. There were 5 leavers recorded in April 2018.. 

• Staff in Post and Starters and Leavers: . Staffing levels have decreased to 274 

FTE for April equating to a total headcount of 335.  The April report confirms 5 

new starters and 5 leavers for April 2018. Over the last 12 months there has been 

46 leavers and 73 starters 

•  Leavers by reason:. The report identifies 46 leavers over the 12 month period, 

the main reason for leaving is due to promotion opportunities.                                              

• Sickness Absence Rate:  The data is indicating that long term absence has 

increased from 2.19% to 2.50%. 11 staff members were off work due to being 

long term sick in April. Short term absence has decreased from 1.03% to 0.45%, 

17 staff members were  off sick on short term sickness absence in April. The 

report confirms overall absence for April 2018 is 2.95%  

• Sickness by Reason: For April 2018 the main reason for sickness absence is 

anxiety/stress/depression, which accounts for the most days lost to sickness.   

• 6 month workforce report: The IGQC will review the 6 month workforce report at 

the meeting held on 21 June. Trends over the past 6 months on key workforce 

data will be reviewed including a closer analysis of turnover rates, recruitment 

problems, sickness absence, staff survey findings and actions.   

37 

P
age 69



4.0 Leadership (slide 2 of 3) 

38 

Indicator Summary and headline evidence/ examples 

1. Probity and 

Governance 

The CCG has put in place strong clinical and non clinical leadership across all areas of the STP, recent developments include investment 

in GP Provider leads to support local delivery and GP cluster working (16 clusters now in operation). STP governance structures include 

CCG staff in senior leadership roles in all areas of the programme alongside provider leadership roles.  STP work programmes progressing 

with outcomes being seen in a number of areas, including cancer, MSK and eye health and also across health and wellbeing projects such 

as the daily mile and the community wellbeing service.  HR and OD plan aligns to that of the STP and is overseen by the HR/OD group 

who meet quarterly. There is a refreshed workforce and OD strategy, setting out establishment of the Gloucestershire Local Workforce 

Action Board LGWAB) to oversee the enabling workstream for the STP. Further modelling is being undertaken on the current workforce 

and future changes and challenges.  Glos STP has been approved as an Integrated Care System. 

2. Staff Engagement The CCG effectively engages with staff members with a Joint Staff Consultative Committee and an annual staff survey. The 2017 survey 

demonstrated that staff feel engaged in the work of the organisation with 79% recommending it as a place to work. A robust action plan has 

been produced and the 2018 survey is currently being developed to assess the improvements made since then. The 2018 survey was sent 

out to staff in May and will close in July 2018. In addition, staff engagement is aligned to the STP through the Social Partnership Forum and 

the Associate Director of Corporate Governance leads on HR and OD internally, and attends associated STP working groups to represent 

the CCG.  Plans are linked to the overall STP workforce development. 

3. Workforce Race 

Equality 

WRES data forms part of the CCG’s annual Equality and Engagement report, reported to the IGQC. The 2017 annual  report ‘An Open 

Culture’ was approved by the Governing Body in March and published. The CCG Governing Body has also signed up to the Insight 

Programme: the CCG has been allocated an insight NED / Lay Member who is from a BME community and has been assigned a Lay 

Member ‘buddy’ .  

4. Effective Working 

Relationships 

Due to consistent ratings as a top performing CCG in relation to effective working relationships, Ipsos MORI has invited the CCG to speak 

to them about its approach to working relationships as part of the national stakeholder survey report. The 2017/18 360 survey results show 

that 99% of respondents responded positively when asked to rate the effectiveness of their working relationship with the CCG, an increase 

from 92% in 2017. 100% of GP Member Practices feel that the CCG has an effective relationship with them, demonstrating the value of the 

primary care team. This is further supported by extremely positive verbatim comments as part of the survey. Full action plan to be drafted in 

May on areas requiring improvement. 

5. Compliance with 

statutory guidance 

on patient and 

public participation  

The CCG is committed to embedding involvement in all areas of its commissioning activity and is able to provide clear evidence of progress 

against the 10 key actions including through the annual report, feedback website pages, communication engagement strategies and plans, 

consultation report, AGM and equality impact assessments.  STP engagement, first stage complete, Forest of Dean consultation completed 

and preparation underway for One Place Business case consultation, patient participation in urgent care pathway design workshops this 

spring secured.  

P
age 70



4.0 Leadership (slide 3 of 3) 

39 

Indicator:  Summary and headline evidence/ examples 

6.1 Leadership STP five year plan, developed from the FYFV signed off by all partners.  CCG operational & financial plans developed from 

the STP plan, start point April 2017.  STP work programme developing using the agreed governance structure. The CCG has 

80 practices grouped into 7 localities with a strong relationship between the locality and the CCG through Locality Executive 

Groups and the Primary Care team. Specific examples of good practice include several primary care events and an annual 

rolling programme of GP Practice visits and varied communication methods such as What’s New This Week and G Care.  

CCG OD plan focus on staff development and includes strong emphasis on formal appraisal including PDPs.  Staff training 

co-ordinated across includes financial training at all levels including Governing Body and all budget holders. In February this 

year the CCG along with its partners submitted its application to become an Integrated Care System and was informed in May 

this year that it had been successful.  This allow ICS partners to access a developmental programme and support. 

6.2 Quality of 

Leadership 

There is a clear governance structure in place which enables a focus on quality, performance delivery including contracts and 

finance within the IGQC, Audit Committee, Governing Body business meetings and the formal bi monthly Governing Body. 

Information is reported to each committee with a focus on key area of risk as well as the overall performance position.  The 

Governing Body is well sighted on financial and performance issues with regular informal and formal reporting. Meetings are 

well documented to evidence the level of discussion and challenge. Governing Body members expertise range from 

governance, clinical, financial, commercial and patient experience enabling a strong challenge. 

6.3 Leadership 

Governance 

The Governing Body has a clear constitution, policies, set roles and responsibilities which enable them to effectively 

challenge. A recent review has been undertaken of the risk management process with a dedicated Risk Management 

workshop organised for Governing Body members and senior managers, which focused on risk appetite. Further changes will 

be implemented with the Audit Committee taking responsibility for assuring the GB on risk management. Each committee 

carries out a self assessment annually to inform future development.. The CCG has a robust corporate governance 

framework including policies, committee structure and monthly reporting to the GB on financial & performance risk including 

those within providers and contracts.  External expert advice is taken where required e.g. legal advice on a judicial review.  

Clean external audit reports since inception.  Internal audit annually cover transactional areas as well as developmental areas 

and are reported to Audit Committee.  

6.4 

Transformational 

Leadership 

The STP / ICS has a clear governance structure supported by a MOU which has been agreed by all partners. The Governing 

Body receives bi-monthly STP reports which provide updates on key achievements, performance and areas of focus. 

Providers also report on STP achievements to their respective boards. For example, partners are involved in progressing the 

One Place programme to develop the urgent care system to improve the patient experience. A dedicated team has been put 

in place to drive this project. A newly created Local Workforce Acton Board is working through key workforce priorities, 

funding opportunities and evaluating R&R initiatives. 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HCOSC) 

July 2018 

One Gloucestershire STP Lead Report 

 
 
 
 

 
These reports provide an update to HCOSC members on the 
progress of key programme and projects across 
Gloucestershire’s Sustainability & Transformation Partnership 
(STP) to date.   

Gloucestershire’s STP commenced year two of four in April 2018, since then we have made 
progress in embedding and delivering key schemes outlined within the plan, in an increasingly 
challenging health and care environment. We continue to develop our delivery plans against 
our main priority programmes (figure 1). In the May 2018 report we outlined the progress made 
in 2017/18 and the priorities for plans in 2018/19; in this report we provide an early update on 
2018/19 progress made against the priority delivery programmes and supporting enabling 
programmes included within the Gloucestershire STP. 

 
Figure 1: Gloucestershire’s STP Plan on a page  

 

1. Executive  
Summary 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



 

2 
 

 
The One Gloucestershire STP brings services together across the county of Gloucestershire. 
The county faces a number of changes over the life of the programme including rising 
population and a rising elderly population and increasing number of people living with a long-
term condition (figure 2). 
 

 

Figure 2: The One Gloucestershire Challenge  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
The Enabling Active Communities programme looks to build a 
new sense of personal responsibility and improved 
independence for health, supporting community capacity and 
working with the voluntary and community sector.  

The development of the Gloucestershire Prevention and Shared Care Plan, led by Public 
Health, aims to reduce the health and wellbeing gap and recognises that more systematic 
prevention is critical in order to reduce the overall burden of disease in the population and 
maintain financial sustainability in our system. 
 

Key priorities for 2018/19 are: 

 Reach the target of over 5,000 patients being on the National Diabetes Prevention 
Programme  

 Appoint a GP Clinical Champion in Diabetes to further raise the profile of diabetic care in 
general practice  

 Commission a new Child Weight Management Service and implement our new adult 

2. Enabling Active 
Communities 

Page 74



 

3 
 

Weight Management Service Model to support people to reduce their weight in a 
sustainable way 

 Continue to deliver an early identification and intervention model for victims of domestic 
abuse  

 Develop a Breastfeeding Social Marketing campaign  

 Progress the Gloucestershire Moves project (getting 30,000 inactive people active) and 
see the first pilots underway; including ‘Beat the Street’ and older people at risk of falls  

 Launch a new postpartum contraception service  

 Launch our new Gloucestershire Self-Management Education Programme called ‘Live 
Better, Feel Better’ and Support over 200 individuals through our new Self-Management 
Service  

 Create a direct route into the community wellbeing service from urgent care (A&E, 
urgent treatment centres) to support people who attend for non-medical reasons 

 Expand the arts on prescription service  

 Increase our focus on support the following pathways with self-care and prevention 
schemes: adult mental health; paediatric epilepsy; paediatric Type 1 diabetes; Tier 3 
obesity, adult chronic pain and adult respiratory pathways 

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 Launched “Beat the Street” on 7th June 2018 in Gloucester 
City; this is an interactive walking/running/cycling game 
with over 70 sensors called beat boxes that have to be 
electronically collected by those who participate. The 
project is due to run until the start of the school summer 
holidays. As at 24th June 37,500 miles have been covered 
by 60 participating  teams.   

 126 schools are now participating in the Daily Mile, meaning that 22,500 pupils are 
getting involved 

 There have been 1,487 referrals onto the National Diabetes Prevention Programme. 

 The Workplace Health and Wellbeing Charter survey has been finalised and was 
agreed. This went live on 27th April for 3 weeks. 

 Community Engagers have been appointed in Forest of Dean, Tewkesbury and 
Gloucester to work alongside communities to ensure services are designed by and meet 
the needs of those communities.  The First Action Learning Set has been completed to 
lay the ground work for this project. 

 A Domestic Abuse (DA) Champion has been identified in A&E at Gloucestershire Royal 
Hospital to help support victims of domestic abuse as early as possible. 

 There have been approximately 1640 referrals into the Community Wellbeing Service. 
60% of these came from GPs, 10% were self-referrals and 30% came from other 
sources. 

 

 
 

 

  

Community Wellbeing Case Study - Stroud Community Wellbeing Service  

A 36 year old female who had recently split up with her partner was experiencing anxiety and social isolation. She 

had also been signed off work due to her anxiety  

Assessment with Community Wellbeing Agent (CWA) established she had strengths and talents around 

creativity. An art group was identified in the local community and she felt comfortable to attend.  

She was linked in with the Mental Health and Wellbeing Service for ongoing support around her anxiety. She also 

started to attend an Art group with the MH&WB service. She has also been signposted to Listening Post.  

Over a couple of weeks her confidence grew and she began to feel less anxious, she felt ready to go back to 

work and has now re-established her work pattern and relationships within the work environment.  

Going forward she feels that as she grows in confidence and reduces her isolation she will be in a position to 

volunteer and help support the group.  

 

Page 75



 

4 
 

 
The Clinical Programme Approach has been adopted across 
our local health care system to ensure a collaborative 
approach to systematically redesign the way care is delivered 
in our system, by reorganising care pathways and delivery 
systems to deliver right care, in the right place, at the right 
time. 

 Priorities 2018/19 Progress So Far… 

Respiratory 

Deliver a comprehensive education and 
training package for health care 
professionals working in primary care and 
managing long term respiratory conditions.  

Support primary care to stop prescribing 
steroids where they are not having a 
significant impact on an individual’s quality 
of life 

Continue to bring together the hospital and 
community respiratory teams together into 
one integrated team  

We are looking at the best option to provide 
a more streamlined service for 
Brochiecstasis including IV Therapy. 

Key dates have now been identified to 
ensure a smooth period of transition to an 
integrated service across acute and 
community areas including: 

• Go Live with Supported Discharge – 1 
Sept 2018 

• Go Live with Admission Avoidance at the 
front door- 1 Sept 2018 

• Go Live with Admission Avoidance in the 
community - 1 November 2018 

• Go Live date for a 7-day Integration 
service - 1 December 2018 

Musculoskeletal 

Embed the Advanced Practitioner Service 
providing physiotherapy support to patients 
in primary care.  

Roll out MSK triage service which provides 
expert clinical review at the point of referral. 

Design and implement a countywide 
integrated approach to falls prevention 

The Foot and Ankle MSK Specialist Triage 
is now functioning and is working well. 

There has been a great deal of work on the 
MSK dashboard in order to monitor the 
impact of the changes we are making. 

Services are reporting an increase in self 
referrals. The CCG team continues to work 
with partners to promote self-management 
of MSK conditions and self-referral into core 
physiotherapy. 

Circulatory 

Improvements to heart failure care 

Develop proposal for cardiac rehabilitation 

Progress community stroke rehabilitation 

CVD Prevention was included in Primary 
Care Offer for 2018/19 with GP 
Masterclasses booked for July & 
November. 

Business case for Community Stroke 
Rehabilitation has been agreed and is 
moving forwards. 

A workshop to review the Cardiac 
Rehabilitation pathway took place in May. 

Dementia 

Develop a countywide approach to 
community dementia services  

Implement the Community Hospital Mental 
Health Liaison Team pilot 

Evaluation of the Integrated Community 
Dementia Services Pilot is in progress and 
is on target. Initial findings are that primary 
care has seen significant improvements 

  

3. Clinical 
Programme 
Approach 

Page 76



 

5 
 

Cancer 

Progress towards the 2020/21 ambition for 
more cancers to be diagnosed at the 
earliest stages  

Implementation of the Optimal Lung Cancer 
pathway to support quicker diagnosis 

Deliver the Prostate Cancer Surveillance 
Project 

Implement the Colorectal Streamlining 
Project, including the Straight to Test 
pathway which speeds up diagnosis for 
patients 

Macmillan Project Manager has been 
appointed 

National Cancer Transformation funding for 
the local Cancer Alliance for 2017/18 has 
now been drawn down against agreed 
project plans for the Living With & Beyond 
and Early Diagnosis Projects 

The straight to test colonoscopy pathway 
began at the end of May and is being 
closely monitored. This means that patients 
referred with suspected cancer receive the 
most common tests within 14 days of 
referral helping to reduce time to diagnosis.  

Eye Health 

Explore the enhanced community eye care 
offer to provide additional eye care services 

Implement the new NICE guidelines within 
Ophthalmology 

All five phases of the new community eye 
health service are embedding well with 
continued positive feedback from patients 
using the service. 

Work is ongoing with the ophthalmology 
community service (PEG) to further develop 
services available in Optometry practices 

Diabetes 

Recruit a part-time Consultant Diabetologist 

Training to care homes on “caring for 
patients with diabetes” 

Appoint a GP Champion in Diabetes to 
reduce differences between GP practices in 
diabetes care 

A workshop took place on 'what does 
diabetes look like in 2030' on 18th April 
2018 with good attendance from acute, 
community, private and voluntary sector 

CCG has progressed to the next round of 
Wave 2 Test Beds for commissioning an 
on-line education tool. 

CCG has appointed a GP Clinical 
Champion 

Children & 
Maternity 

Develop community hubs and integrate 
better together services that support 
women and families in the early years 

Implement our ‘Safer Maternity Care’ Action 
plan 

Develop models of care to support women 
to have the same carer throughout 
pregnancy, birth and post-natal care 

Aim to have 30 to 40 children with 
Personalised Care Plans by Mar 19 

Plans for community hubs have been 
established and venues are being scoped 
across the county. Pilot venues will be from 
July to November 2018.  

Gloucestershire Local Maternity System are 
working with the South West Clinical 
Network to explore an electronic template 
for personalised care planning. 

STP Better Conversations Board has been 
established. 

Page 77



 

6 
 

Mental Health 

Continue to take steps to Improve Access 
to Psychological Therapies (IAPT), to 
ensure we meet standards for access, 
recovery and waiting times to treatment  

Make further improvements to the Eating 
Disorder Pathway 

Implement an all age Autism strategy  

Roll out mandatory mental health training 
for staff in schools 

Improve support to foster carers and 
children entering the care system 

Procure emotional support for children who 
have experienced sexual assault / abuse 

Procurement will proceed aiming to have a 
service in place for October 2018 for 
therapeutic support for victims of sexual 
violence.  

Kingfisher Treasure Seekers have engaged 
4 individuals in the support and training 
package service and personalised care 
plans have been completed for all 
individuals. 

Roll out of training continues for all qualified 
clinicians in Mental Health Acute Response 
Service 

Development of a decision making matrix to 
guide professionals to the most appropriate 
form of transport, as part of the Mental 
Health Transport Review. 

Pilot to be implemented with 2gNHSFT 
using Wotton Lawn staff/vehicle to provide 
rapid response where clinical vehicle 
(ambulance/PTS) is not required and level 
of risk can be managed 

Learning 
Disability 

Enabling individuals with a Learning 
Disability to use Personal Health Budgets to 
ensure they have control of the support 
they receive 

Embed the “Stopping Over Medication of 
People with LD” campaign to reduce the 
prescriptions of anti-psychotic drugs where 
they are not clinically recommended 

Ensure that 75% of people with a LD on the 
GP LD Register receive an Annual Health 
Check by Quarter 4 19/20 

GP Annual Health Check promotion 
campaign and training was launched at the 
10

th
 Big Health Check Day in May 2018. 

65 reviews have been received from the 
LeDeR programme. Links with other 
mortality and learning from death reviews 
have been established.  

Work is ongoing to help establish a “At risk 
of admission” register as part of the 
Transforming Care Programme. 

  

Page 78



 

7 
 

 
The Reducing Clinical Variation programme looks to elevate 
key issues of clinical variation to system level and have a new 
joined up conversation with the public around some of the 
harder priority decisions we will need to make. This includes 
building on the variation approach with primary care, 
promoting ‘Choosing Wisely’ and a Medicines Optimisation 
approach and undertaking a diagnostics review. 

 
Key priorities for 2018/19 are 

 The successful Prescribing Support dietetics role will be expanded to support change in 
the recommendation of oral vitamin B vs Vitamin B injections, advice and support 
around optimising the use of calcium and vitamin D, as well as reviewing and producing 
infant milk guidance to ensure appropriate support to patients via primary care 

 Continue to support, develop and extend the Repeat Prescription Ordering Service for 
Gloucestershire patients to support the reduction of prescribed waste medication. 

 Continue to support reducing Polypharmacy (the use of multiple medications at the 
same time) in patients, initial focus on frail patients, and extend it to groups such as 
those in care homes with the aim of reducing unwanted side effects  

 Implement a paper referral switch off so that all referrals to consultant led services are 
made via an electronic system by October 2018 (in line with national guidance.)  

 Implement patient led booking to give patients more control over their follow up care. 

 Implement GP peer review of referrals to support consistency of patient management at 
a locality level. 

 Continued development of alternatives to face to face follow up appointments 

 Reducing the number of people who failed to attend a booked hospital appointment 
through a public awareness campaign and by establishing a reminder services 

 Continue to make improvements to Operating Theatre, Radiology and Pathology 
pathways to reduce waste 

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 Continued work at pace on Individual Funding Review policies. 

 2018/19 Medicines Optimisation savings plan has been established with the 
Prescribing Improvement Plan laying this out in detail. 

 Fully engaged with the recommendations of the “Conditions for which over the 
counter items should not routinely be prescribed in primary care” consultation being 
undertaken nationally. 

 Thirteen specialties now offer Advice and Guidance (A&G). Usage of A&G increased 
by 64% where GPs are able to access advice directly from hospital services they are 
considering referring a patient to, 

 Paper referrals were successfully switched off on 4th June 2018 meaning that all 
referrals now go through a single electronic route ensuring that there is equity 
between all referrals. 

 GP/Consultant referral reviews have been completed in ENT, Gastroenterology, 
Gynaecology, Dermatology, Colorectal, Upper GI and Urology with work underway to 
trial GP Peer review/GP referral support at Cluster level 

 Straight to test for colonoscopy alongside the Colorectal suspected cancer pathway 
has been agreed and was implemented at end of May. 

  

4. Reducing Clinical 
Variation 

Page 79



 

8 
 

 
New Models of Care & Place Based Model 

The One Place, One Budget, One System programme takes 
a place based approach to resources and ensures we deliver 
best value. Our community care redesign will ensure 
responsive community based care is delivered through a 
transformative system approach to health and social care. 

The intention is to enable people in Gloucestershire to be more self-supporting and less 
dependent on health and social care services, living in healthy communities, benefitting from 
strong networks of community support and being able to access high quality care when 
needed. New locality led ‘Models of Care’ pilots commenced in 2016/17 to ‘test and learn’ from 
their implementation and outcomes, working across organisational boundaries, and leading to 
the formation of 16 locality clusters across the county. 

Key priorities for 2018/19 are 

 Led by STP partners, pilot three Integrated Locality Boards in both rural and urban 
areas.  The pilots will be in Stroud and Berkeley Vale, Forest of Dean and Cheltenham.  
These aim to give more control to local GPs to develop and tailor services to best meet 
the needs of people in the local area. 

 Increase the range of roles in primary care available to support GPs and patients 
including the use expanding paramedics, clinical pharmacists and mental nurses 

 Support the roll out of the Community Dementia pilot across the county 

 We will continue to work with practices to support them through merger or federation 
conversations as required.  

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 All pilot Integrated Locality Boards are up and running, and taking place monthly and are 
starting to set priorities for their populations following the process developed in Stroud. 

 Health Coaching training has been completed in North East Gloucester and South East 
Gloucester, with colleagues from provider and GP organisations across the cluster.  

 Patients are being sent follow up patient activation measures surveys to complete and a 
steady number are being returned to help evaluate the South Cotswolds Community 
Frailty Service. 

 
Urgent Care 

Our vision for Urgent Care will deliver the right care for 
patients, when they need it. In order to make this vision a 
reality and provide safe and sustainable services in to the 
future, we need to consider how to make best use our 
resources, facilities and beds in hospitals and in the 
community. 

We want to improve arrangements for patients to access timely and senior clinical decision 
making about their treatment and ensure specialist support is accessed as soon as possible. 
We propose potentially changing the way some care and support is organised in 
Gloucestershire to meet changing demands, make best use of our staff, their skills and the 
money we have.  
 
An overview of the One Place Programme was shared with HCOSC in November 2017, 
describing how the programme aims to deliver an integrated urgent care system and hospital 

5. One Place, One 
Budget, One System 

5. One Place, One 
Budget, One System 

Page 80



 

9 
 

centres of excellence to ensure we realise the vision for urgent care. Since this update work 
has continued to develop the programme timetable, engaging with clinicians, patients, and staff 
and community partners to develop the proposals for consultation. 

During 2018/19 we are planning 3 test and learn projects which will contribute to the overall 
design of what the future system might look like, the overall programme of work includes 

 Development and implementation of Acute Floor test & learn project. This project 
will aim to better support the delivery of A&E waiting time standards and rapid senior 
assessment of patients. The acute floor is envisaged to bring together the current 
ambulatory services which support the emergency department including to Acute 
Assessment Unit, Surgical Assessment Unit, Ambulatory Emergency Care and the 
OPAL (older persons advice & liaison) service. It will also bring in the AMIMA (acute 
medical initial assessment) unit to support winter flow. It is envisaged that the acute floor 
would enable co-location of services resulting in improved patient flow, better outcomes 
and reduced pressure on staff.  

 Development and implementation of the Urgent Care Treatment Centre (UTC) test 
and learn project.  As part of the rollout of the national programmes for urgent and 
emergency care Gloucestershire CCG will pilot a rural UTC and key elements of an 
urban UTC. These centres will offer enhanced support for patients who may currently 
attend an emergency department but for non-life and limb reasons. These pilots will be 
operational for September 2018 and will inform the recommended models of care and 
activity plans within the One Place programme  

 Clinical Advice and Assessment Service (CAAS). We will work with professionals 
and members of the public to shape our CAAS. This service will provide advice and 
guidance to healthcare professionals across Gloucestershire. This service will support 
informed decision making and support patients to get to the right clinician / setting first 
time. The Pre-CAAS test and learn project will provide an inter-connected, clinically 
resourced hub for access by both patients and health care professionals via 111 and 
aims to begin by June 2018. The purpose is to reduce preventable referrals through 
appropriate clinical intervention at the point of first enquiry.  

 Hot advice service We will pilot a hot advice service during 2018/19.  This service will 
allow GPs and other healthcare professionals to access specialist consultant advice.  

 Deliver 111 direct booking pilot. We will work with primary care, 111 and the wider 
healthcare service to implement 111 direct booking of GP appointments in Q3 / Q4 of 
2018/19.  

To date, we have put in place 

 7-day service provision is embedded in all new service specification.  Performance 
against the key 7-day standards is regularly monitored.  

 Upcoming test and learn pilots (including acute floor and UTCs have confirmed they will 
be trailing new telephone roles) will support the move to 7-day provision and increase 
the percentage of patients reviewed by a consultant within 14 hours. 

 County wide bed modelling is ongoing and being used to inform wider modelling for the 
one place programme. 

 Developing the commissioning strategy for urgent care services 

 

Page 81



 

10 
 

 
 

Our vision is underpinned by our enabling programmes which 
are working to ensure that the system has the right capacity 
and capability to deliver on the clinical priorities. 

 

 Joint IT Strategy – Local Digital Roadmap Governance has been established and will 
be managed by the Countywide IM&T Group with Project Boards and work streams 
established for the key IM&T Enablers. The wifi project has progressed with 97% of 
Practices being installed with access points for both corporate and public wifi. NHS Mail 
2 has been implemented across the majority of the County which has supported 
improved collaboration between organisations. Gloucestershire’s health and social care 
community have been awarded Health Foundation funding to deliver an innovative Data 
Analyst Apprenticeship programme within health and social care in 2018. The first go 
live of Joining Up Your Information will share Primary Care and Community Information 
with the Mental Health Crises and Liaison Team and Children and Young People 
Service at 2gether NHS Foundation Trust.  
 

 Joint Workforce Strategy – the Workforce and Organisational development Strategy 
has been refined and updated; the strategy focuses on three themes: capacity, 
capability and culture. Developing 7 day working across urgent care services is a priority 
for the coming year. Looking to develop a shared recruitment function across STP 
organisations and expanding the Trainee Nursing Associate programme are also central 
priorities. Continuing to improve workforce planning and development across the system 
will be increasingly important to system-wide working. 
 

 Joint Estates Strategy – the estates strategy is moving forwards with a number of 
strands of work. Significant progress in the Primary Care Infrastructure Plan with a 
further 4 schemes are planned to delivered in full in 18/19. The re-provision of 
community hospital services in the Forest of Dean will remain a priority in 2018/19 
following public consultation in 2017/18. Capital requirements for the urgent & 
emergency care plan are also key to delivery in the next year and a revised estates 
strategy will be approved and submitted to NHS England in July 2018. 
 

 Primary Care Strategy – the Primary Care Strategy works alongside One Place, One 
Budget, One System to ensure we have really high quality primary care provision. 
Improved access has been successfully rolled out, which offers evening and weekend 
access to primary care across all clusters, equating to a total of 40,000 additional 
appointments. There has been engagement with the 111 online team and the CCG has 
become members of the project team, to ensure the two projects are aligned. The CCG, 
in partnership with the Community Education Providers Network, has agreed to support 
a Health Inequalities Tutor Role to ensure that roles that persistently struggle to recruit 
to are supported and successful. 4 Newly Qualified GPs (NQGP) are being recruited as 
part of the NQGP Scheme. 

 
  

6. Enabling 
Programmes 

Page 82



 

11 
 

 A national announcement was made by NHS England that 
Gloucestershire in June 2018 to confirm that Gloucestershire 
is to become one of only 14 Integrated Care Systems (ICS) 
across the country; we will be one of 4 new systems to join 
the other 10 systems who have been working in a ICS way 
during 2017/18. 
 

At the same time, the county was given a huge vote of confidence and praised by NHS 
England Chief Executive, Simon Stevens for providing strong leadership, for effective 
partnership working and ambitious plans to join up support and services for the benefit of 
communities. Gloucestershire was also praised for improvements in access to GP services, 
A&E performance, cancer treatment times as well as a reduction in cancelled operations and 
delays for people ready to leave hospital. 
 
In a joint statement, the Chief Executives and lead elected members of the local NHS and 
social care organisations explained what they believed an ICS for Gloucestershire will mean: 

 an even greater focus on supporting people to keep healthy and independent and 
developing active communities 

 local people with long term conditions – whether those are physical health, mental health 
or learning disability related – should see more joined up care and support in their own 
homes, GP surgery, community or in hospital 

 staff should find it easier to work with colleagues from other organisations to support 
shared health priorities 

 greater freedom and control to make local decisions about services and use of the 
Gloucestershire pound 

 Ability to attract additional money to develop services and support. 
 
The announcement recognises the strong and positive partnerships already in place across 
health and care in Gloucestershire. There is already a strong track record in the county for 
working together to break down organisational barriers and to support seamless, joined up care 
and support for local people. Working as ‘One Gloucestershire’, the county has made 
tremendous strides over the last few years, using its collective strength to improve the way 
support and care is provided. This was highlighted by the magnificent way professional staff 
worked together to manage winter pressures so successfully this year. By working with local 
communities, Gloucestershire continues to make significant progress in supporting people to 
look after their own health and keep 
healthy. It also resonates with what 
people told us when we asked 
them what they wanted from their 
health and social care system. 
 
Gloucestershire is 1 of 4 areas to be named in the Wave 2 announcement and will initially 
become a ‘shadow’ ICS with specific timescales for full establishment to be determined. 
Movement to an ICS does not mean a merger of existing organisations or creation of a new 
organisation, rather organisations coming together in voluntary partnership. A memorandum of 
understanding will set out the principles of collaboration between the partners for development 
of services and use of resources. HSCOC will be involved as the system progresses through 
the ICS process and we will all have a significant ability to influence what enhanced integrated 
care will look like for One Gloucestershire. 
  

8. Integrated Care 

Page 83



 

12 
 

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members 
are invited to note the contents.  
Mary Hutton  
STP Lead, Gloucestershire STP Footprint  
 

 

 

 

8. Recommendations 

Page 84



Health and Care Scrutiny Committee – 
Report from Commissioning Director: Adults and DASS

_________________________________________________

Adult Single Programme – Community Cluster Update

Know your Patch Workshops – Strengthening Community Connections 

As part of the work within the Community Cluster of the Adult Single Programme  we 
have been holding workshops across the county bringing together health and care 
practitioners and grass roots community groups, VCS organisations, faith groups 
and individuals who want to support others in their community.  The purpose of the 
workshops is to network, share information and explore how we can work better 
together across all sectors, to develop new relationships and further  strengthen 
existing  relationships.

Know Your Patch workshops have been  held in each District council locality with 
over 380 people attending across all sectors including faith groups, parish councils, 
district councillors and county councillors, volunteer led community groups and larger 
VCS organisations.  Practitioners from across adult social care, health, mental 
health, housing providers, support services such as the Community Wellbeing 
Service and the Drugs and Alcohol Service have also attended.  

At these workshops, GCC set out the challenges faced by Adult Social Care and the 
opportunities presented by the Care Act 2014 for us to work better with communities.  
The Council has developed a new approach known as the three tier approach which 
means that we promote self-care and supporting people to take charge of their own 
care needs by finding support within their community.

However, helping people help themselves’ does NOT mean leaving people without 
support. It does mean that if people don’t need to use our services and can get their 
needs met in other ways, we have a role in helping them with that as well.

In order to increase awareness of what’s available in and for our communities we 
need to be better connected at a local level, have a mechanism to exchange 
information and an accessible place to hold this information.  

This is the purpose of the Know Your Patch Networks.  There will be a network in 
each of the six localities supported by a local VCS organisation.   The members of 
the networks are from all sectors with the common purpose to support people to 
remain living independently or safely return to independence in their communities.  
The networks will share and exchange information about what is working well and 
what can be done better; bring together partners to talk about local issues that face 
the citizens of the locality and be open and flexible to adapt and learn from 
experience and feedback. The networks will promote ‘Your Circle’ the online health 
and care directory and contribute details of community groups and services. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 10



www.yourcircle.org.uk

Three Know Your Patch Networks have been established so far these are:

KYP Forest of Dean hosted by Forest Voluntary Action Forum (FVAF) 

KYP Cheltenham hosted by Gloucestershire Rural Community Council (GRCC)

KYP Gloucester hosted by Kingfisher Treasure Seekers

For more information contact thrivingcommunities@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Advice for people planning, preparing and paying for care and support

People with assets over £23,250 who are in receipt of care may be paying for all of it 
themselves, often at great cost.  It can be very stressful and complicated to plan how 
to pay for care, particularly as it is often done at a time of crisis. 

Adult Social Care have a Care Act duty to support people to make informed, 
affordable and sustainable financial decisions about people’s care throughout all 
stages of their life. In order to discharge this duty the Council has re-commissioned 
The Care Advice Line.

The Care Advice Line can give an independent, free telephone advice service to 
help people make informed decisions about how best to meet their care and support 
needs and how to pay for it.  It can also help people to access professional advice, 
such as financial advisors and solicitors so they can write wills and arrange a Power 
of Attorney.

As well has helping the Council meet its legal duties, The Care Advice Line  
contributes to our work on prevention and demand management. With the right 
advice at the right time, it is expected that more people will be financially 
independent for longer and able to use their available resources more flexibly to fund 
a wider range of care options. 

People who have used The Care Advice Line have said:

“Thank you so much, I really appreciate your advice. I understand how it all works 
now and what I need to do. It really has helped being able to talk this though.”

“It’s funny, it’s quite nice to know there are other people in the same boat, you 
sometimes feel marooned, like its only you this is happening to so to be able to talk it 
through is fantastic.”

“Thanks, a lot of useful information there so that’s been wonderful. It’s hard, people 
tell you things and you can read things but you don't know if it’s all true, or even 
applies, so to be able to speak to somebody about these issues is really good. 
Thank you for calling me back.”

Page 86

mailto:thrivingcommunities@gloucestershire.gov.uk


“Wow, I've got a really good plan of action now, it’s everything I wanted to know.” 

The Care Advice Line can be contacted on 01452 222200 or 
www.thecareadviceline.org

Officer contact: Fiona Jones, fiona.jones@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Proud to Care Gloucestershire

Proud to Care is our initiative to attract staff to social care posts across the voluntary 
and statutory sectors.

Our priorities for 2018-2019 are:

Engage 16-24 year olds, parent returners to work and people over the age of 55 in 
starting careers in care.

Encourage providers within Gloucestershire to share best practice in retention 
through workshops and forums. 

Develop and pilot a leadership and management pathway for the sector.

Develop a ‘Fundamentals of Care’ training pathway to improve skills and 
competencies with the Adult Social Care Sector

Support the development and implementation of the ‘Glos Assistants’ Noticeboard 
(Gloucestershire’s personal assistants for care register).

Develop, implement and coordinate a work experience and volunteering programme. 

Increase the completion of National Minimum Data Set for Social Care (NMDS-SC) 
completion within Gloucestershire once the new National Minimum Data Set – Social 
Care platform has launched.

Our progress so far:

Two Proud to Care (PTC) Support Advisers have started fixed term roles (12 
months) within the team, with focuses on public engagement (with agreed target 
groups), coordinate work experience and volunteering opportunities within the sector 
and support Gloucestershire’s Care Ambassadors Scheme.

A calendar of events has been drafted for the year. These events will be attended by 
the team along with PTC Glos. Ambassadors to showcase career opportunities 
within care & health. Events include school careers fairs and open evening, jobs 
fairs, open days and other community events.

PTC Glos. continues to work closely with CQC and are pleased they are a core 
member of PTC Glos. Strategy & Development group. CQC refer providers to PTC 

Page 87

mailto:fiona.jones@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Glos. who they identify during inspection as needing support  with recruitment, 
retention & workforce development.

Two sub-groups have now been set up under the Proud to Care Strategy & 
Development Board to develop and implement a staged Leadership and 
Management Pathway for the sector and a staged ‘Fundamentals of Care’ Pathway 
(a bid has been submitted to secure HEE funding through the STP to support this 
work stream).

As part of plans to develop a staged Leadership and Management Pathway for the 
sector Skills for Care’s ‘Lead to Succeed’ course has been piloted within 
Gloucestershire. So far 3 of the 5 modules have taken place and preliminary 
feedback is excellent.

Plans are in place to further develop the PTC Glos Jobs portal as a result of provider 
feedback received at the end of 17/18. 

We are attending the STP’s Local Workforce Action Board to reaffirm the STP’s 
commitment to work in partnership with PTC Glos for health and social care.  
Members of the team have already been attending STP’s recruitment & retention 
Sub-group to ensure alignment of Proud to Care with any One Glos initiatives.

The Proud to Care Glos. Year one Report is available on request, providing an 
update on activities undertaking in 2017-2018. For more information please contact 
rachael.hughes@gloucestershire.gov.uk / 01452 324310

Page 88



Health and Care Scrutiny Committee 

Report from the Director of Public Health

July 2018

__________________________________________________________________

Self harm and suicide prevention

GCC Public Health has been leading two major pieces of work to inform self-harm 
and suicide prevention in Gloucestershire. The first was a review of pathways for 
people who self-harm. Although this was prompted by relatively high rates of 
admission to hospital, the review looked at the whole pathway, including prevention 
and early intervention; access to and quality of treatment and care in the community, 
primary and secondary care; and recovery and prevention of further self-harm. This 
identified a number of key areas for improvement and a partnership action plan is 
now being delivered, including the following example actions:

 Providing better information and signposting for parents and carers of young 
people who self-harm

 Rolling out training and awareness raising for school staff, GPs and practice 
nurses, Minor Injuries Unit staff and Ambulance staff

 Developing an online assessment tool for non-mental health professionals, to 
help them to talk to a young person about self-harm and refer them to the 
right place for help

 Working with Rethink and the Nelson Trust Women’s Centre to pilot group 
support for vulnerable adults who self-harm.

A research project is also underway by Public Health England South West to better 
understand why admission rates for self-harm are higher than the England rate. 
There are a number of hypotheses for this, including the way in which reasons for 
admission are recorded, how NICE guidance is applied and the local pathways for 
support.

The second piece of work was an audit of deaths by suicide between 2013 and 
2015, looking at the demographics of the whole cohort, the factors in and 
circumstances of their deaths and information about their contact with services. A 
fuller item on the suicide audit findings and refreshed suicide prevention action plan 
will be brought to the next meeting of this committee in September.

Period poverty

Following an amendment to the council budget proposed by the Labour group at full 
Council in February, it was agreed that £50,000 would be allocated in 2018/19 to 
develop a project to tackle period poverty.  The project is being led by Cllr Tim 
Harman and the Director of Public Health.    It aims to increase provision of free 
sanitary products to those who otherwise would struggle to afford them.  There is 
some evidence to suggest some young women are missing school and college each 
month as they cannot afford the sanitary products needed.  

Page 89

Agenda Item 11



The period poverty project will be running a grant scheme to fund organisations with 
links to women vulnerable to period poverty, to tackle the issue via the distribution of 
free sanitary products. The details of the grant scheme are being finalised and the 
scheme will be launched at the end of July.  GCC elected members have also been 
invited to contribute to the project by identifying existing free provision within their 
division and also any groups or organisations they are aware of who are working 
with those who may be vulnerable to period poverty.

Measles cases in Gloucestershire and South West

Since early in 2018 there has been an outbreak of Measles affecting the northern 
part of the South West (South Gloucestershire, Wiltshire, Bath and North East 
Somerset, North Somerset, and Gloucestershire). This follows a Measles outbreak 
centred in Gloucestershire in late 2017. There have been in excess of 100 confirmed 
and probable cases affecting this area since the beginning of the year; 11 of these 
cases are resident in Gloucestershire. Gloucestershire has not seen any new cases 
for several weeks. Incomplete or no vaccination against measles has been a key risk 
factor in the outbreak. 

Gloucestershire County Council and partners in the NHS had already been working 
on a campaign to increase the uptake of the Measles, Mumps and Rubella (MMR) 
vaccination in under vaccinated populations, focusing on 16 to 25 year olds 
(identified as a key vulnerable group). A media and communications campaign was 
led by Gloucestershire County Council which included: press and media releases; 
interviews on radio and BBC Points West; targeted social media advertising; and 
promotion days at higher education institutes. The campaign was based around a 
tag line #jointheherd. The concept for the communications campaign has since been 
taken up by the regional response team, and shared with partners. 

As part of the response Gloucestershire GPs will be sending letters and/or emails to 
under-vaccinated 16 to 25 year olds over a period of several months to invite them to 
make an appointment to complete their vaccination. This will help to improve the 
vaccination uptake rates of MMR, which have been improving in Gloucestershire 
following a targeted campaign by Gloucestershire County Council and NHS partners 
in the summer of 2017. 

Gloucestershire Moves 

Physical activity: the need to do things differently

Physical inactivity kills as many people as smoking and costs Gloucestershire’s 
healthcare system £9m a year. Many major health issues can be avoided through 
increased physical activity, but 20% of people in the county are inactive and a third 
don’t do enough physical activity to benefit their health. Significant inequalities in 
activity levels exist in relation to age, gender, ethnicity, disability and economic 
status. 

Research shows that for too long, too much funding has been invested in too many 
short-term, isolated, reactive initiatives that lack insight, an evidence base and 
critically, a genuine understanding of how to change behaviour and sustain it for the 
whole population.  

Page 90



Gloucestershire Moves – a whole system theory of change

Gloucestershire Moves is an unprecedented, whole system approach to get 
Gloucestershire moving.  It will use behaviour change theory to create a culture of 
daily physical activity, through interventions at individual, community and population 
levels, as part of an ongoing cycle of planning, implementation and evaluation. 
Bespoke physical activity programmes for the most inactive will be combined with 
local community support and public campaigning to build a social movement for 
change. 

Following an initial year of testing and learning in selected locations, we will develop 
the programme into a further two years of countywide activity, designed to get 
30,000 inactive people active and create a sustained culture of daily physical activity 
for everyone in Gloucestershire.  Year 1 test programmes will focus on:

1. Trialling the behaviour change models, focusing on:

 Place-based work (Barton and Tredworth)
 Older adults at risk of falling
 Children and young people 
 Urban planning and design
 Active travel

2. Building the social movement: working with innovators in social change (the 
Social Change Agency) and cause-related governance (Practical Governance), 
we will lay the top-down and bottom-up foundations for the Gloucestershire 
Moves social movement.

3. Monitoring and evaluation: the University of Gloucestershire will lead the 
evaluation providing a framework that allows regular feedback loops that support 
ongoing learning and practice.

Gloucestershire Moves aligns with a number of existing and emerging health and 
social care priorities. It has been created based on a strong understanding of local 
needs and assets.

Children, young people and families’ framework

The children, young people and families framework aims to bring together and 
provide a unifying strategic focus to all of the different strands of work going on 
across the wider children’s sector in order to deliver better outcomes for all children, 
young people and families in Gloucestershire.  

It is designed to be a clear and simple framework that lays out a vision, priorities for 
action, and the guiding principles that should underpin all work with children young 
people and families.  It takes a system wide approach to tackling the often 
intertwined and complex issues faced by children, young people and their families 
and, as a result, has strong partnership working and collaboration at its core.  

Page 91



The vision is that all Gloucestershire’s Children will:

1. Be protected from toxic stresses that harm them 
2. Have supportive adults that provide responsive relationships to promote 

resilience
3. Be equipped with the core life skills they need to thrive

The guiding principles are:

1. Intervene early – prevention not remediation
2. Close the inequality gap – use proportionate universalism
3. Take a system wide approach  - work collaboratively with partners
4. Work restoratively – work with children and families don’t do things to them
5. Take a holistic view of the child – ensure their voice is listened to

The framework has been developed following a seven month period of work and 
leads on from some of the issues highlighted in the last Director of Public Health 
Annual Report.  The GCC Public Health team have produced a broad ranging needs 
assessment that looks at data on the health, wellbeing, lifestyle, education and 
development of our children, young people and families from pre-conception to 25.  
In addition to the whole population review, the second section  analyses what we 
know about specific groups of children, young people and families whom the 
evidence tells us are likely to need extra support, and the third section looks at the 
wider Gloucestershire environment including the natural, built and economic 
environment.  The detailed report synthesises local performance data, benchmarking 
data, evidence around what works to improve outcomes and sector best practice.  

Alongside the needs assessment analysis, the partnership framework has also been 
informed by collaboration with partners within and beyond Shire Hall; in particular it 
has developed alongside the work on Ofsted Improvement, Adverse Childhood 
Experiences and in conjunction with the ideas around a “child friendly” 
Gloucestershire.   

The partnership framework will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
17 July with a request for approval for countywide consultation with a view to a final 
plan being implemented in Spring 2019.  

Gloucestershire Multi Supplier Framework Agreement for Domestic Abuse

On Friday 8th June 2018 we awarded a Call Off Contract to Splitz Support Service to 
address perpetrator behaviour in relation to domestic abuse. The contracting 
arrangements were made through the Gloucestershire Multi Supplier Framework 
Agreement for Domestic Abuse. The contract is jointly funded by GCC, the CCG and 
OPCC, for an initial term of three years with an option to extend for 12 months. 

The Service works with male perpetrators (18+) and offers a range of interventions to 
challenge beliefs and address their domestic abuse behaviour. Services will offer 
support across different levels of need from prevention activity including: healthy 
relationship courses (these are also available to females), short term one to one 
interventions and longer term accredited voluntary programmes for addressing the 

Page 92



behaviour of male perpetrators, which includes direct support to female partners/ ex-
partners. 

All activities delivered will prioritise the safety of victims and children.

National Breast Screening Incident Update

The incident is being nationally led jointly by PHE and NHS England. Locally, the 
NHS England Public Health Commissioning Teams and the PHE Screening and 
Immunisation Team are working very closely with the breast screening providers to 
support this work and ensure that women are able to be offered a repeat screening 
by the end of October 2018. 

Despite the challenging circumstances, all South West providers of breast 
screenings have responded very positively and are making good progress. For the 
provider of breast screening in Gloucestershire, the level of confidence that the recall 
will be completed by the end of October is high. Capacity has been identified to 
screen all affected women. As of 22 June 2018, all women under 72 have been sent 
appointments and a third of these have already attended for screening. About 40% 
of women aged 72 and over have also been sent appointments and some of these 
women have also already been screened. The provider has been able to achieve 
this whilst also maintaining the routine programme.   

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and  
Scrutiny Committee (HCOSC) 

10 July 2018  
 

NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(GCCG)  

Clinical Chair and Accountable Officer’s Report  
 
1. Introduction 
 

This report has been reformatted to reflect better the new Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP) reporting arrangements to HCOSC. 
 
Section A provides a general NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG) commissioner update, incorporating a National consultation 
section.  
 
Section B provides a CCG commissioner update focussing on primary medical 
care. 
 
Section C provides Trusts’ updates from: 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT); Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT). 

 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership and Plan (STP) 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership Lead Report is provided as a 
separate agenda item. 

 

2. Section A: Local NHS Commissioner Update, 
 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 (GCCG)   

These are items are for information and noting.  

Please note some of the items reported below may also feature in more detail in 
other reports prepared for HCOSC e.g. Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership Lead Report, wherever possible we seek to avoid too much 

duplication.  

 
2.1 Commencement of Integrated Locality Board (ILB) pilots 
 

Integrated Locality Boards (ILBs) met for the first time in the Forest of Dean and 
Stroud and Berkeley Vale in April 2018 and in Cheltenham May in 2018.  The 
ILBs bring together key partners from across the organisations that serve the 

Page 95

Agenda Item 12



 2 

populations of our communities, to consider how together we can improve the 
delivery of health outcomes for their primary care registered populations and 
improve the delivery of services that we are all collectively accountable for. The 
ILBs are the local delivery arm of the Sustainability Transformation Plans 
(STP). 
 

2.2 Contracts 2018/19 
 

The CCG Contracts team has been finalising the updated 2018/19 contract 
schedules and reviewing the contract meeting and assurance processes for 
2018/19. This is to ensure that our contractual approach continues to promote 
and support collaborative working across the STP, underpinned by robust 
contract management. 
 
Actions have been implemented in preparation for the General Data Protection 
Rights (GDPR) coming into force. In addition the CCG Contracts team have 
been supporting colleagues leading on commissioning programmes to ensure 
that service improvements and pathway developments are embedded within 
contract agreements (including primary care, community wellbeing services and 
the Muskulo-skeletal [MSK] programme). 

 
2.3 Urgent Care  
 

April 2018 ED performance was 91.9% with attendance levels returning to 
anticipated levels. The system is focussed upon moving to embedding service 
developments which will support attendance avoidance, admission avoidance 
and reduce discharge delays. Underpinning all this work is the principle of 
‘home first’, with development of ‘to home’ pathways, supporting productive 
discharge and reducing long lengths of stay which can have a detrimental 
impact upon personal resilience. The A&E Delivery Board is overseeing this 
work with view to implementation ahead of winter 2018/19. 
 
Winter planning for 2018/19 is already underway with agreement of key 
deadlines, approach to demand and capacity planning and potential key 
schemes. The learning from winter 2017/18 is informing the approach with a 
particular focus on reviewing demand and capacity. A key part to this work is 
understanding the impact of winter schemes. Also supporting the winter 
planning process is a work stream which aims to develop the escalation tools 
and approach further. A range of forward projections of activity and patient 
flows are also being developed which, once tested for accuracy, will be used to 
anticipate system pressures.  
 
NHS111 online is part of the new national offer which was originally going to go 
live later in 2018. This has been brought forward to July 2018, giving time for 
members of the public to become used to the system ahead of winter. The aim 
is for people to be directed to other appropriate settings of care rather than 
attending the Emergency Department.  
 
A full update on Winter planning is scheduled for the September 2018 meeting 
of HCOSC.  
 
 
 

 

Page 96



 3 

2.4 Health and Wellbeing for the future: Community Hospitals in the Forest of 
 Dean: Next Steps 
  

Following the CCG Governing Body meeting and the Gloucestershire Care 
Services NHS Trust (GCS) Board Meeting on 25 January 2018, work has 
continued to support the development of a new, state of the art community 
hospital for the Forest of Dean.  We have met with a number of community 
partners to provide updates on the decision to proceed with a new hospital and 
the commitments made by the Governing Body and the Board of GCS.   
  
We have, in partnership with GCS, appointed Citizens Juries Community 
Interest Company (CIC) to run an independent citizens’ jury, to consider 
information and make a recommendation regarding the location of the new 
hospital for consideration by the CCG Governing Body and the Board of GCS 
at the end of August 2018. 
  
Citizen’s Juries CIC is a social enterprise dedicated to designing and running 
citizens’ juries, supported by the University of Manchester. It works in 
partnership with the Jefferson Centre, the US-based charity which developed 
the citizens’ jury method. The “jury” will be made up of 18 local residents. 
Citizens Juries CIC have invited applications from local residents to be involved 
in the jury, ensuring a balance in terms of age, gender and geography.  
  
The CCG and GCS has carried out a further six weeks of public engagement 
on the location of a new community hospital. The engagement activity started 
on 21 May, 2018 and concluded on 1 July 2018. The Outcome of Engagement 
Report will make it clear that the engagement responses received will not be 
counted as a vote as the purpose of the engagement has been to obtain public, 
staff and community partner views on the following statements:  
  

 I think the new community hospital should be in or near Cinderford 
because… 

 I think the new community hospital should be in or near Coleford 
because… 

 I think the new community hospital should be in or near Lydney 
because… 

 I don’t have a preference for where the new community hospital is 
located in the Forest of Dean because… 

  
The Outcome of Engagement Report will form part of the information presented 
to the Citizens’ Jury. 
  
Before making their decisions at the end of August 2018, the CCG Governing 
Body and GCS Board will consider the recommendation from the Citizens’ Jury, 
together with feedback received during the public engagement, feedback from 
health and care staff, information about travel, access and equality issues and 
other local population data. 
  
Information about this latest Forest of Dean Community Engagement activity is 
available at www.fodhealth.nhs.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 97

http://www.fodhealth.nhs.uk/


 4 

2.5 Proud to Care 
 

In February 2018 a Multi-Media Advertising campaign was launched across 
Gloucestershire to support the health and social care recruitment and retention 
Campaign Proud to Care Glos. 
 
This campaign was aimed at young people as a priority audience, while also 
seeking to influence early retirees and returners to work. Providers are fully 
engaged in the recruitment and retention support elements of the Proud to Care 
programme and case studies have now been developed as a cornerstone of 
the communications campaign. A programme of events is also identified 
throughout the year where careers in care can be promoted, including college 
and secondary school careers events, which will be attended with the support 
of Proud to Care Ambassadors. 

 
In the first week of the media campaign we saw a 91% increase in webpage 
views and a 67% increase in users from the week before the media campaign 
started. More detailed analysis is underway which will help guide our 
promotional activity throughout 2018/19. 

 
2.6 Community Offer 
 
2.6.1 Mental Health Five Year Forward View 
 

Gloucestershire is on track to deliver against the majority of the key 
deliverables for mental health in 2018/19.  The CCG continues to exceed the 
mental health investment standard and has plans against all of the key areas.   
 
Key areas for development in 2018/19 include: 

 Additional investment into Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 
(IAPT) to meet the access/waiting standards. 

 Remodelling of the existing all age eating disorder service in response to 
changing demand. 

 Additional investment into Adult Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder 
(ADHD) diagnostic/assessment service. 

 Further development of the specialist perinatal service. 

 Implementation of the Intensive Recovery and Intervention Service (IRIS) 
model for Children and Young People. 

 Expansion of the Early Intervention in Psychosis service - Gloucestershire 
Recovery in Psychosis (GRIP). 

 
Projects for adults in crisis, or at risk of developing a crisis, are in the process of 
being evaluated but are showing positive results in terms of managing demand, 
providing alternative options for patients/ professionals and improved 
outcomes. These schemes have been working successfully alongside existing 
mainstream mental health services (e.g. Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment 
Teams, Liaison Psychiatry, High Intensity Case Management).  Examples of 
such schemes include the street triage project and the wellbeing café.  Work 
will develop further around high intensity case management through a joint 
scheme with Glos Police entitled ‘Serenity Integrated Mentoring’ and through 
joining the High Intensity Network. 

 
 

Page 98



 5 

2.6.2 Community Offer – Complex Care at Home 
 

The Complex Care at Home Service, a new preventative community service 
operating in Cheltenham and Gloucester was launched in April 2018. The 
model has been co-designed with a range of stakeholders including the 
provider Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust, primary care and third 
sector organisations. It includes a case finding approach to identifying people 
who are losing resilience and independence, increasing in frailty and at risk of 
hospital admission or long term care. 
 
The team is multi-disciplinary led by Community Matrons and includes 
dementia specialists, therapists, wellbeing coordinators, a dietitian and social 
care practitioners. They adopt a person-led care planning approach and 
promote the self-management of health conditions by using health coaching 
and the Patient Activation Measure. They work closely with the person and 
resources in the community to identify and access longer term low level support 
to maintain benefits. 

 
2.6.3 Community Offer – ‘Knead to Know’ 
 

The Knead to Know project, delivered by Age UK Gloucestershire and The 
Wiggly Worm, offers community based sessions combining a baking activity 
with facilitated discussion around choices and preferences at end of life. The 
first year of the project piloted the approach and evaluated how prepared, 
informed and comfortable participants felt talking about, and making decisions 
about their later life preferences. 
 
7 workshops were held with over 70 participants giving feedback. Workshops 
were most successful where they were held with already established 
community groups such as church groups or memory cafes. 
 
Feedback was very positive, with participants reporting that the workshops 
have left them feeling better placed and more confident to talk about, and do 
something about, their later life choices and preferences. 
 
Plans for 2018/19 include holding more workshops with community groups, 
including younger adults and people in care homes and developing a network 
of community ambassadors to promote later life planning within their 
community. 

 
2.7 Strategy for working with Gloucestershire Voluntary, Community and 
 Social Enterprise Sector and VCS Alliance 2018 to 2021 
 

This Strategy sets out the activities that will be undertaken over of the next 3 
years to improve engagement between Gloucestershire VCSE and the Public 
Sector.  This strategy is aimed at ensuring the Public Sector and VCSE 
priorities are aligned and that both sectors can work closely together for the 
benefit of individuals in the county. 
 
The Strategy, written following extensive consultation which took place between 
July 2017 and February 2018, puts the county in a position to understand the 
requirements of both sectors and supports high level engagement, partnership 
building and service design.   

 

Page 99



 6 

The Strategy identifies 6 core strands: 
 
1. Understanding Commissioning 
2. Shared Training/Resources 
3. Volunteering 
4. Expertise 
5. Partnerships 
6. Co-Developing Services 
 
Each strand has a detailed set of actions against it, which will be delivered 
between April 2018 and March 2021. Although the VCS Alliance will be 
responsible for ensuring these activities take place there is a reliance on the 
Public Sector and other relevant VCSE agencies to ensure that this work can 
be undertaken effectively. 

 
Strategy vision 
With a growing population and more complex needs, we need a different way of 
thinking. We cannot rely solely on public services. Prevention, helping people to 
take more control over their health and neighbourhoods and building up 
sources of community support has never been more important.  
 
We are not starting from scratch, as we already have high levels of community 
action and strong and dynamic partnerships.  This Strategy puts an emphasis 
on ‘Place’ rather than ‘Services’ – a wide partnership at a local level to bring 
together sources of community support and action. 

 
Strategy ambitions: what are we working towards? 

 Supporting people to look after themselves and each other in a collective 
way  

 Communities involved in co-designing better health and social care  

 Using the talent, reach and social value of VCSE organisations for the 
benefit of people in Gloucestershire  

 Seeking opportunities to generate external income through a VCSE, 
health and social care partnership 

 
Strategy commitments: what have we agreed to do? 

 Develop a new way of working together in order to meet the challenges 
our community face, this strategy details how we will do this  

 Engage people and communities in new and different ways of doing 
things  

 Work within each other’s organisations to share learning and develop 
solutions  

 Share good practice between VCSE and statutory sectors  

 Partnership working to enable more effective and efficient use of local 
resources 

 
This Strategy, and the accompanying action plan, will be monitored by the 
Enabling Active Communities (EAC) Board part of the One Gloucestershire 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP).  
 
 
 

 

Page 100



 7 

2.8 NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Annual General 
 Meeting 

 
The CCG is holding its AGM on Thursday 12 July 2018 from 4:30pm at Sanger 
House, Gloucester Business Park, Brockworth, GL3 4FE. All are welcome to 
attend for an opportunity to: 

 Hear our highlights from the year 2017/18 

 Find out about the vision or the future 

 Meet Governing Body Members and ‘Q&A’ 
 
The formal meeting will commence at 5:00pm following light refreshments. 
 

2.9 What matters to you?   
 

What matters to you? day (6 June) is about having more meaningful 
conversations, about listening to understand. It is a day for health and social 
care professionals to stop and think a little more about how they are listening, 
who they are listening to and what they are doing as a result. 
 
The CCG encouraged doctors, nurses, physiotherapists, social workers and 
others who work in public services across Gloucestershire to have a ‘What 
matters to you?’ conversation on 6 June 2018. Working with the people they 
support, they considered what matters to them and what they did differently as 
a result of the conversation. 
 
What matters to you? day is intended to help health and social care 
professionals to get the best possible outcome for the people they care for by 
really understanding the things that are important to them. 
 
What matters to you? day is an important opportunity for us to stop and think 
about how we are listening.  It helps to establish meaningful relationships with 
the people and to understand what is important to them in the context of their 
own lives. 
 
Having more meaningful conversations helps us to focus on what provides the 
most benefit to people. This enables all of us to do our jobs more effectively 
and it helps people to live lives that are meaningful and fulfilling for them – it’s 
win-win! 
 

2.10 Clinical Programmes Update 
 

2.10.1 Improving Atrial Fibrillation (AF) Detection and Diagnosis Through 
 Technology 

 
NHS England (NHSE) has supported a technology initiative to improve the 
detection of AF in order to reduce the number of strokes. The West of England 
Academic Health Science Network (WEAHSN) is supporting the roll out of 
these devices to all practices at zero cost and will facilitate the data collection 
on usage and benefit. For more information on how the technology works 
please visit: https://www.alivecor.com/howitworks/ 
 
The Circulatory Clinical Programme Group (CPG) will soon be in contact with 
practices to identify those who would like to have a device and set up the 
necessary training to ensure roll out is achieved by summer 2018. The 

Page 101

https://www.alivecor.com/howitworks/


 8 

WEAHSN will support their introduction with any training and support at 
practice level. 
 

2.10.2 Musculoskeletal (MSK) Specialist Triage of Foot and Ankle Referrals 
 

In order to improve the patient experience, the MSK CPG has been working 
with surgeons, physiotherapists, podiatrists and patients to redesign the patient 
pathway so that the appropriate assessment and, where suitable, treatment is 
provided before any referral to an orthopaedic Foot and Ankle surgeon is made. 
This improves the patients’ journey by reducing the number of appointments 
they need to attend before accessing the appropriate treatment and also 
ensuring that those patients who would benefit from a surgical opinion are able 
to access it as soon as possible. 
 
The Foot and Ankle Specialist MSK triage started in April 2018. GPs have been 
advised that they should refer any Foot and Ankle problems to the Specialised 
Triage using eRS (Electronic referral system). They have also been 
encouraged to use a new MSK referral form to make referrals as complete as 
possible. The referrals are assessed, within 72 hours, by an experienced 
Advanced Practitioner who decides on the most appropriate course of action. 
Patients are then advised, by post, which service they are being directed to. For 
some patients this will be directly to a Foot and Ankle orthopaedic consultant, 
whilst others will be seen by an appropriately trained physiotherapist or 
podiatrist. Patients are able to choose where and when they would like to be 
seen. 
 
The MSK Foot and Ankle Specialised Triage is acting as a pilot for the triage, 
by Advanced Practitioners, for all orthopaedic referrals. The full triage service 
will be starting in July 2018. 
 

2.10.3 Live Better to Feel Better  
 

In April 2018 a new Live Better to Feel Better self-management education and 
peer support programme was launched. The programme recognises the 
potential of partnership working with people with Long Term Conditions (LTC), 
harnessing the power of peer support to improve the health of our population. 
This reflects the asset based community approach that runs through the 
Gloucestershire Self Care and Prevention Plan. 
 
It is aimed at people with one or more LTCs who are finding it challenging to 
manage life with their conditions. This (non-disease specific) programme 
complements patient education provided by GCS and is a safe space for 
people to explore together how their conditions are affecting their lives and gain 
the confidence and skill to break the negative symptom cycle. 
 
Led by Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust, the programme has been co-
designed with a group of people with LTCs. It builds on the positive elements of 
the Expert Patient Programme, which it replaces. Five group sessions are 
provided, exploring management approaches to common practical problems, 
as well as practicing underpinning skills like gaining insight, solving problems 
and communicating more effectively. Trained group facilitators have long term 
conditions themselves and mentor good self-management practice. The aim is 
to enable participants to use programme tools to develop their own self-
management plans. These reflect their own goals and support them achieve 

Page 102



 9 

longer term behaviour change, develop effective partnerships with 
professionals and make use of community support. 
 
For people with LTCs this is an opportunity for personal development as 
training and support is provided to programme volunteers. 
 
Live Better to Feel Better has been available in Forest of Dean and Gloucester 
City from April 2018 and will be countywide from September 2018. 
 

2.11 Planned Care Update 
 
Electronic Referral Service (e-RS) Paper Switch Off – 4 June 2018 
The e-RS Paper Switch Off took place on 4 June 2018. From this time 100% of 
GP referrals to consultant led outpatient appointments need to be completed 
using NHS e–RS. 
 
A programme of communications was distributed via ‘What’s New This Week’, 
the weekly practice electronic bulletin, and an e-RS Paper Switch Off webpage 
has been created. Monitoring has shown that the webpage is being well viewed 
with practices able to access training information, a frequently asked questions 
section and process flowcharts. 
 

2.12 Procurement Update  
 
2.12.1 Counselling Service for Children and Young People 

Following a EU procurement process, a contract for the provision of Online 
Counselling for Children and Young People (ages 11 to 21-years) has been 
awarded to Teens in Crisis Plus.  The new service commences on 1 July 2018 
for an initial period of 3-years. 
 

2.12.2 Community Urology Services 
A number of bids have been received for the provision of the above.  A CCG 
project team is in the process of evaluating offers and it is anticipated that a 
new service will commence from 1 October 2018 for an initial period of 3-years. 
Tier 2 Weight Management Services (Children’s) 
 
CCG procurement staff are working collaboratively with Public Health 
colleagues at Gloucestershire County Council to source provider(s) for a short 
term Test and Learn Pilot to support individual children / families to reduce their 
body mass index. 
 
The project team is seeking a flexible and collaborative approach with clearly 
defined outcomes, which would allow the service to evolve and lead to the 
development of an innovative service specification for longer term service 
delivery. 
 

2.12.3 Emotional Support for Victims of Sexual Violence 
A competitive tender process took place in June 2018 for the above service.  
The CCG was seeking to appoint a preferred provider to deliver the service 
from 1 October 2018 for an initial period of 3-years. Unfortunately no bids to 
provide this service were received. The CCG is currently reviewing options. 

 

Page 103



 10 

3. Department of Health and Social Care and NHS England 
 Consultations 
 

Information regarding Department of Health and Social Care consultations is 
available via the GOV.UK website: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultat
ions 
 
Information regarding NHS England consultations is available via the NHS 
England website: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/ 
 
These websites also include responses to closed consultations. 
 

3.1 Relevant open consultations 
 
Specialised Services clinical commissioning policy: Infliximab for 
Progressive Pulmonary Sarcoidosis 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/commissioning-policy-
infliximab/ 
 
NHS England is seeking feedback regarding a clinical commissioning policy 
proposition for Infliximab for Progressive Pulmonary Sarcoidosis. 
 
Closes 22 Jul 2018, Opened 22 Jun 2018. 
 
2018 Friends and Family Test Development Project - Providers and 
Commissioners Survey 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/2018-fft-development-project-
providers/ 
 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/2018-fft-development-project-
commissioners/ 
 
NHS England's Insight & Feedback Team is running a development project 
during 2018/19, reviewing the operation of the Friends and Family Test (FFT) 
and how it could be improved. The review will take account of learning and 
research so far and will be collaborative with those delivering the FFT and will 
involve testing of proposals to ensure any change delivers benefits. 
 
Closes 31 Jul 2018, Opened 20 Jun 2018. 
 
Proposed changes to the service specification for Tier 4 Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services: General Children’s Services 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/child-and-adolescent-mental-
health-services/ 
NHS England has launched a 60 day formal public consultation today, to seek 
feedback on a new specification for CAMHS Tier 4 children’s services. 
Children’s services are a service category of Tier 4 CAMHS and provided in 
specific provider units.  The new specification has been developed by talking to 
clinicians, Allied Health Professionals, public and patient engagement groups 
and was informed by a period of stakeholder engagement in 2016. 
 
Closes 14 Aug 2018, Opened 15 Jun 2018. 

Page 104

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/commissioning-policy-infliximab/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/commissioning-policy-infliximab/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/2018-fft-development-project-providers/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/2018-fft-development-project-providers/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/2018-fft-development-project-commissioners/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/2018-fft-development-project-commissioners/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/child-and-adolescent-mental-health-services/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/child-and-adolescent-mental-health-services/


 11 

 
NHS RightCare Intelligence - product evaluation 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/local-health-economies/ 
NHS RightCare uses a methodology that focuses on increasing value in 
healthcare and tackling unwarranted variation.  It is underpinned by intelligence 
and robust evidence, showing commissioners and local health economies 
‘where to look’ i.e. where variation and low value exists. The approach then 
goes on to support health economies through the phases of ‘what to change’ 
and ‘how to change’. 
 
The NHS RightCare Intelligence programme has produced a number of 
different products including focus packs, practice packs, pathways and 
scenarios that look at a variety of health conditions. All these products use 
evidence to shine a light on unwarranted variation and performance to 
encourage improvement in quality. 
 
Closes 31 Aug 2018, Opened 25 Jun 2018. 

 
3.2 Department of Health and Social Care Policies 
 

The following web link provides access to Department of Health and Social 
Policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=d
epartment-of-health 

 

4. Section B: Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
 Group (GCCG) primary medical care commissioning 
 update   

These items are for information and noting. 

4.1 New Gloucester City Health Inequalities Fellowship 
 

In May 2018 the CCG launched our Gloucester City Health Inequalities Fellowship 
with the aim of inspiring and supporting new or experienced GPs to undertake a 
salaried post in an inner city setting, and develop skills to address local health 
inequalities for practice patients.   
 
The posts involve a mixture of four clinical sessions per week working in core 
General Practice as a salaried GP, building experience in the provision of general 
medical services in inner city Gloucester; one Health Inequalities session per week 
and one day a week undertaking the Postgraduate Certificate in Public Health at 
the University of the West of England (UWE). This is to develop expertise in the 
wider determinants of inequality in health and healthcare.   

 
4.2 GP Forward View Progress 
 

35 practices participated in the Productive General Practice programme in late 
2017. In Spring 2018, the CCG secured an additional module for 12 of these 
practices from the national team and, as a CCG, we have funded the programme 
for a further eight practices, who had their first group based learning session in 
early May 2018. 

Page 105

https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/survey/local-health-economies/
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health


 12 

 
The CCG was also successful in gaining funding from NHS England for Practice 
Manager (PM) Development, specifically for working at scale, change 
management and/or quality improvement.  The CCG secured additional expert 
coaching resource and training which ran on the 15 and 22 March 2018. An event 
was held for all practices in June 2018 and the cluster level Time for Care 
programme will commence in Autumn 2018. 
 

4.3 Improved access cluster pilots 
 
All fourteen Improved Access cluster pilots are now operational.  The pilots deliver 
access to primary care appointments until 8pm at night during weekdays, with 
further provision on Saturdays and Sundays; encompassing innovative ways of 
delivering services to patients. Since their commencement each cluster has offered 
between 301 and 563 local appointments each. 
 
Informed by the pilots, the CCG is developing a long-term commissioning strategy 
for Improved Access with plans for procurement taking shape. 
 
In June 2018, 111 direct access into some urgent weekend appointments are 
being tested in Gloucestershire.  

 
4.4 Practice mergers update 
 

There are now 76 Practices in Gloucestershire following the successful merger of 
Heathville, London Medical, Barnwood and Saintbridge practices to become Aspen 
Medical Practice and the merger of College Yard/Highnam and Cheltenham Road 
to become The Alney Practice.  The merger of the former created the largest GP 
Practice in Gloucester with 30,175 patients.  Learning from the merger process 
and the introduction of a new model of primary care will be shared with other 
practices in Gloucestershire.  

 
4.5 Gloucester Health Access Centre (GHAC) and Matson Lane Branch Update 
 

A new ten year Alternative Provider Medical Services (APMS) contract 
commences in May 2018 with the current provider of GHAC, Gloucester GP 
Consortium Ltd, to deliver a primary care registered list at Eastgate House (with a 
branch at Matson Lane) and an 8am – 8pm urgent primary care centre at Eastgate 
House.    

 
4.6 On line consultations/GP online 
 

The CCG is in the process of consulting practices regarding plans for an online 
offer for Gloucestershire which is planned for procurement during the summer 
2018.  The aim is to develop an offer which links to NHS Pathways, practice 
workflows, Patient Online, plus the National and Local directory of Services.  
 
An online offer will allow patients to conduct a clinical consultation with their 
practice online, using a mobile app or online portal. Patients can tell the practice 
about their query, or problem, or submit monitoring information, and receive a 
reply, prescription, call back, other kind of appointment, or be signposted to a more 
appropriate clinician for their needs. They can also access information about 
symptoms and treatment, supporting greater use of self-care. 
 

Page 106



 13 

A presentation about GP Online was made to the Gloucestershire Patient 
Participation Group (PPG) Network in June 2018. Subsequently, several PPGs 
have volunteered to participate in the procurement activity, ensuring patient views 
will inform the process.  
 

4.7 Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspections 
 

As at end April 2018, 17 Gloucestershire practices had received visits during 
2017/18 and had received their CQC published inspection report.  Since the last 
report to HCOSC Bartongate Practice in Gloucester City has received a rating of 
‘good’. 

 
4.8 Primary Care Premises update 
 

Phase One of Glevum Way, Gloucester surgery extension complete 
Phase One of the £5 million refurbishment and extension programme at Hadwen 
Medical Practice’s Glevum Way Surgery in Abbeydale is now complete, and the 
surgery opened its new three-storey extension on 9 April 2018. This was marked 
by a small celebratory event on 6 April, with ‘ribbon cutting’ by Cllr Andrew 
Gravells. The extension is linked to the original practice via a walkway and offers a 
mixture of consulting and treatment rooms alongside a minor procedure suite. 
Meanwhile, a new car park with 64 spaces has also been built at the rear of the 
new building. Work continues on Phase 2 of the project, which will see the 
refurbishment of the existing Glevum Way Surgery. This is due to be completed by 
August 2018. 

 
 

5. Section C: Local Providers’ updates  
 

This Section includes updates from 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT), Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT),  
 

These items are for information and noting. 
 
 

5.0 Trusts Merger update 
 

Progress continues on proposals to formally merge 2gether NHS Foundation 
Trust and Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust in order to transform the 
way in which community physical health, mental health and learning disability 
services are delivered. The Trusts are already working closely together but the 
benefits we really want for our communities can best be achieved if we become 
a single organisation, delivering outstanding integrated physical and mental 
health care. 
 
The timetable for the proposed merger has now been published, and sets out a 
series of milestones. The Trusts are currently preparing a strategic business 
case, which will be considered by the Boards in September. If the Boards 
approve, the case will then be submitted to NHS Improvement. The next stage 
in the process will be preparation of a full business case with the aim of joining 
the organisations in summer 2019.   

Page 107



 14 

While this transaction work is continuing, engagement is taking place with 
stakeholders – both within the Trusts and externally, including with 
commissioners. A series of events for senior leaders has taken place, primarily 
to discuss clinical delivery and care pathways. There have also been events for 
stakeholders in both Gloucestershire and Herefordshire aimed at involving 
service users, carers, patients and partners in early discussions about how 
services can be transformed and how we can ensure the process is co-
produced.  
 
The Trusts’ Joint Chief Executive, Paul Roberts – who took up his position in 
April – and Joint Chair, Ingrid Barker – who took up her position in January – 
are leading the process with a series of boards and work streams supporting 
the programme’s delivery. 
 

 
5.1 

2
gether NHS Foundation Trust (

2
GNHSFT) 

 
5.1.1 Care Quality Commission inspection results 
 

The outcome of the Trust’s most recent inspection by the Care Quality 
Commission has been published. The Trust has been rated ‘good’ overall, with 
some significant improvements in a number of services.  
Improvements included:  

 

 Wards for older people with mental health problems are now rated 
‘Outstanding’ for being caring and ‘Good’ for safe. 

 Community-based mental health services for older people are now rated 
‘Good’ overall, ‘Good’ for being well-led and ‘Good’ for being effective. 

 Wards for people with a learning disability or autism are now rated ‘Good’ 
for being responsive. 

 
Services for children and young people retained their ‘good’ rating across the 
Board. None of the services inspected were down-graded and the Trust now 
has seven ‘outstanding’ ratings, 46 ‘good’ ratings and seven ‘requires 
improvement’ ratings across the 60 domains. 
 
There are still some areas for improvement within wards for people with a 
learning disability and long stay rehabilitation wards for working age adults and 
the Trust will continue to focus on these areas.  
 
A team of inspectors from the Care Quality Commission visited the trust 
between February and March 2018 to check the quality of four core mental 
health services: community based mental health services for older people, 
wards for people with learning disabilities or autism, wards for older people with 
mental health problems, specialist community mental health services for 
children and young people. CQC also looked specifically at management and 
leadership to answer the key question: Is the trust well led? 
 
The full inspection report can be read on the Care Quality Commission website 
and is also available through the Trust’s own website.  

 
 
 

Page 108



 15 

5.1.2 New Non-Executive Director 
 

A new non-executive director has been welcomed to the board of ²gether NHS 
Foundation Trust. 
 
Dominique Thompson, who lives in Bristol, was a GP for almost 20 years. She 
specialised in student health and specifically mental health, along with a special 
interest in eating disorders. 
 
She sat on the National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidelines panel 
for the new eating disorder guidance published in May 2017 and created the 
primary care eating disorders service for the city of Bristol. Dominique was also 
named Bristol Healthcare Professional of the Year in 2017. 
 
After leaving clinical practice last September, Dominique felt that she had 
accumulated lots of skills in the field of mental health and wanted to put these 
to good use whilst supporting the NHS at a more strategic level. 

 
5.1.3 NHS70  
 

The Trust is marking the 70th anniversary of the NHS in a number of ways. 
This includes an exhibition and open day, taking place at Blackfriars Priory, in 
Gloucester, on 5 July – the date the NHS was founded in 1948. The exhibition, 
which runs from 10am until 7pm, will showcase local NHS services as well as 
historic artefacts charting the history of the NHS in Gloucestershire. 
 
The event is also being held to highlight sources of support and opportunities to 
get involved in the Trust’s work, perhaps through volunteering, being involved 
with research, becoming a Trust member and career opportunities. 
 
On July 20 2018, the Trust will celebrate its annual Recognising Outstanding 
Service and Contribution Awards (ROSCAs). This year the event will have an 
NHS70 theme, and awards will be presented in 10 categories. There will also 
be recognition for long services, with certificates presented to those who have 
given 20, 30 and 40 years of service to the NHS.  
 

 NHS70 Awards 
 
Colleagues from across 2gether Trust have been nominated for the NHS70 
Parliamentary Awards, being held to celebrate the 70th anniversary of the NHS.  
The country's MPs sought nominations from NHS organisations within each of 
their constituencies. Gloucester MP Richard Graham hosted a breakfast 
reception for colleagues nominated from within his Gloucester constituency. 
 
Gloucester-based 2gether colleagues presented with certificates were: 
 

 Andy Webb (Team Manager, on behalf of the Gloucestershire Criminal 
Justice Liaison Team) - the Person Centred Care Champion Award 

 Raye Chakkori (Team Administrator) - Lifetime Achievement Award 

 Karen Dawe (Head of Profession for Physiotherapy, Health and 
Exercise) - Healthier Communities Award 

 Jane Melton and Dan Beale-Cocks (on behalf of the Gloucestershire 
Tackles Stigma Group) - Mental Health Care Award 

 

Page 109



 16 

The nominees received their certificates alongside representatives from both 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust and NHS Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 
 
Other Trust colleagues from 2gether’s services in Gloucestershire nominated 
for NHS70 awards were:  
 

 Lisa Grindle - the Care and Compassion Award (Nomination to Mark 
Harper, MP) 

 Charlotte Miles and Tonia Barden (Older People's Community Mental 
Health Team, Herefordshire) -  the Care and Compassion 
Award(Nomination to Jesse Norman MP) 

 Bill Newton - the Person Centred Care Champion Award (Nomination to 
Mark Harper MP) 

 Charlton Lane Hospital - the Care and Compassion Award (Nomination 
to Alex Chalk MP) 

 Inpatient Learning Disability Teams (Berkeley House, Stroud) - the 
Person Centred Care Champion Award (Nomination to David Drew MP) 

 
5.1.4 Mental Health Awareness Week 
 

Events were held to mark Mental Health Awareness Week, including a series of 
drop in events for staff at the Trust’s Occupational Health service – Working 
Well. The Anna King Show on BBC Radio Gloucestershire ran a special hour 
long segment focusing on mental health, stress and promoting 2gether’s Let's 
Talk service. Jan Bagnall, from Let's Talk, was interviewed, alongside Jake, 
who had used Let's Talk, and Dorothy, a 93-year-old who is passionate about 
promoting mental health awareness. There were also awareness stands at 
locations across Gloucestershire and Herefordshire, and the launch of 
FestivALL in Gloucester, where 2gether promoted mental health awareness 
and tackling stigma. Weeks like Mental Health Awareness Week are a prime 
opportunity to promote good mental health and wellbeing and highlight the 
many sources of support available, with encouragement to access support if 
required.  
 

5.1.5 Mental Health Nursing Degree 
 
The Nursing and Midwifery Council has now validated a BSc in Mental Health 
Nursing and degree apprenticeship at the University of Gloucestershire. 
2gether is hoping to offer up to 20 students a scholarship allowance, for 
applicants who agree to work for the Trust for two years immediately following 
graduation. Scholarship students will also be provided with a bank contract if 
they commit to working 20 shifts as a Healthcare Assistant during their studies.  
 
Traditionally, mental health nursing students have studied through the 
University of the West of England. This led to a significant proportion of 
students taking up positions in the Bristol area, and 2gether has found it 
increasingly difficult to recruit mental health nursing graduates to the Trust. It is 
hoped the new partnership with the University of Gloucestershire will vastly 
alleviate this problem, enabling the Trust to recruit and retain graduates more 
effectively in the near future.  

 
 

Page 110



 17 

5.1.6 Education evening with Cobalt  
 

An education evening is being held on 26 July 2018, to highlight the 
collaborative work between 2gether and Cobalt on improving research and 
diagnosis of dementia. The partnership between the Trust and Cobalt was 
formed in 2016. It is aimed at utilising ground breaking diagnostic imaging 
techniques to improve diagnosis of dementia and offer patients the opportunity 
to participate in research into new treatments and forms of support. The Trust 
has a research centre called the Fritchie Centre, on the site of the Charlton 
Lane Hospital site, in Cheltenham. Cobalt works closely with the Trust to 
progress this joint, pioneering work. The education evening will provide health 
professionals and interested parties with further details about how the 
partnership works and how it is impacting on the lives of people with dementia, 
their families and carers.  

 
5.1.7 Big Health Check Day 
 

The 10th Annual Learning Disability Big Health Check and Social Care Open 
Day attracted more than 1,250 volunteers, family carers and support staff to 
Oxstalls Sports Park, in Gloucester. The event, which aims to help people with 
learning disabilities and complex health and physical health needs stay healthy 
and active, was attended by a wide range of partners. A total of 101 stalls and 
static display vehicles showcased the wealth of local health and social care 
services available in Gloucestershire and surrounding counties that work to 
make a difference in reducing health inequalities and improving quality of life. 

Among the activities on offer were adapted bikes and trikes, snooker, new age 
curling, boccia, table top cricket, football, golf, tennis, bowls, archery, 
trampolining and martial arts. Active Impact provided interactive workshops, to 
create interest in cooking healthy meals. Here visitors were also able to 
practice electronic music and art, while Via-Dance, an inclusive and diverse 
dance group, provided interactive workshops. 
 
Visitors also enjoyed meeting some of the animals from North Cerney’s 
Scrubditch Care Farm, horses Teddy and Barton of the Gloucestershire 
Mounted Police Unit and some of the Pets as Therapy dogs. 
 
Seventy-five volunteers from Hartpury College, Dena Magna and Inclusion 
Gloucestershire made everyone welcome and assisted where needed in the 
car park, with registration, adapted sports and with the stallholders. 

 
5.1.8 Hello My Name Is 

 
More than 80 colleagues gathered at an event dedicated to exploring human 
connections in healthcare. The event involved guest Chris Pointon, who was 
speaking about the Hello My Name Is campaign he launched with his late wife, 
Dr Kate Granger. 
 
Dr Granger was a terminally ill cancer patient when she and her husband 
decided to start the campaign. During a hospital stay in August 2013 with post-
operative sepsis, she made the stark observation that many staff looking after 
her did not introduce themselves before delivering her care. 
 
She and Chris decided to start the campaign, primarily using social media 
initially, to encourage and remind healthcare staff about the importance of 

Page 111



 18 

introductions in healthcare. The campaign has gone on to attract worldwide 
attention, and open conversations about how we can provide more 
compassionate care. 
 
Dr Granger sadly died in 2016. Her husband, Chris, has continued her 
campaign through conference talks across the world, book writing, presenting 
awards and social media. His presentation - which included a short film 
enabling colleagues to hear directly from Dr Granger - was moving and 
inspirational for everyone who attended. 

 
5.1.9 South West Secure Partnership Wins Award 
 

A partnership of South West-based NHS and independent sector organisations 
has been celebrating after winning a prestigious award. The South West 
Regional Secure Services Partnership, which includes 2gether NHS 
Foundation Trust, was recognised for its work to reduce out of area placements 
and enable more people who need secure mental health treatment to receive it 
close to home.  
 
The partnership was nominated and subsequently came first in the mental 
health category for the South West Regional Secure Services Wave One New 
Care Model Pilot project, at the Health Service Journal (HSJ) Value in 
Healthcare Awards, which took place in Manchester in June 2017. Partnership 
members have worked together since July 2016 to repatriate 73 service users 
from out of region placements and they continue to develop new services and 
pathways to enable even more people to be treated close to home.  
 
Presenting the award, the judges said: “Our winners present a project with a 
hugely impressive feat of leadership, transforming productivity and patient and 
family experience across a large geography in a very complex area of care.” 
Devon Partnership NHS Trust is the accountable provider and the other 
partners include Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust, 
Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, Cornwall Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust, 2gether NHS Foundation Trust, Livewell South West, 
Elysium Healthcare and Cygnet Healthcare. 
 

5.1.10 Nursing Times Awards 
 

2gether's Research team has been shortlisted for a prestigious Nursing Times 
Award. The team, based at the Fritchie Centre, in Cheltenham, was nominated 
for their work on involving patients and their families in dementia research. 
They will now present to the judging panel in September, before finding out 
whether they have won the award in October. The team and Trust are delighted 
that their work, which is carried out in partnership with Cobalt, is being 
highlighted nationally and that they are at the forefront of this important 
research work and innovation.  
 

 

Page 112



 19 

5.2 Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) 
 

5.2.1 Staff awards celebrate the best… of the best 

 

More than 250 colleagues joined the festivities as Churchdown Community Centre 
played host to the Trust’s Celebrating You Awards 2018. 

 

Fourteen awards were up for grabs at three events which were hosted throughout 
the day at the venue, drawing a large, happy and appreciative crowd. 

 

As well as awards for each of the Trust’s values (Caring, Open, Responsible, 
Effective), service areas (Community Hospitals, ICTs, Countywide, Children and 
Young People, Support Services) and Volunteer and Apprentice of the Year, there 
were three new Trust Champion awards which were nominated by the Trust board 
for excellence in Achievement, Partnership work and Innovation. 

Some examples of the winners - Cheryl Haswell, Matron at the Forest Hospitals, 
won the Achievement Award for her support and advocacy of the Trust in the 
Forest of Dean through an ongoing period of change. Haroon Kadodia, from 
Gloucestershire County Council, was named Trust Champion for Partnership and 
Sarah Birmingham, Head of Children and Young People’s Services, won the 
Innovation award. 

 

5.2.2 Celebrating success for support roles 

Healthcare Assistants (HCAs) in the Trust have been recognised for their skills in 
safe and compassionate care. HCAs from Cirencester, North Cotswolds, Dilke, 
Lydney, the Vale and Stroud hospitals gathered at special events to celebrate 
completing their Care Certificate. 

 

Developed by Health Education England, Skills for Health and Skills for Care, the 
Certificate is awarded to those in healthcare roles who have demonstrated they 
meet each of the 15 Care Certificate standards. 

 

These include caring with privacy and dignity, awareness of mental health 
(including dementia and learning difficulties), safeguarding and infection control. 
The HCAs worked together in small support groups, discussing topics and sharing 
experiences of healthcare, to complete their assessment. 

 

This certificate is an important part of the HCAs’ learning and development, and 
some will now go onto apply for Nursing Associate and Nursing Apprentice roles. 

 

5.2.3 Nursing Times 2018 - national awards 

Two colleagues from the Trust have been shortlisted in the prestigious Nursing 
Times Awards 2018. The categories are the Nurse Leader of the Year and Rising 
Star. To be shortlisted amongst high-quality national entries is a fantastic 
achievement. 

 

5.2.4 Duchess of Cornwall meets our SARC team 

 

The Trust was delighted to host HRH The Duchess of Cornwall at our Sexual 
Assault Referral Centre (SARC) in Gloucester. HRH spent time with sexual assault 
survivors and met colleagues from the service. The SARC, which is part of the 

Page 113



 20 

Trust, officially opened in April 2009. It provides a safe, supportive space with 
specialist staff who are trained to help individuals to make informed decisions, 
including whether they choose to report the offence to the Police.  

 

Working across Gloucestershire, SARCs are determined to work closely with local 
communities to raise awareness and reduce barriers to accessing SARC services. 
While Gloucestershire’s SARC has seen year-on-year increases in activity, there 
continues to be significant unmet need which the centre seeks to meet. 

 

In addition to strong and established partnerships with community organisations, 
the SARC is co-located with Hope House, the Trust’s sexual health service, which 
works in partnership with the SARC to enable referrals to be prioritised, ensuring 
early intervention to improve sexual health outcomes. 

 

The SARC in Gloucester supplies washbags to clients who have undergone a 
forensic examination, providing them with some comfort at a difficult time. The 
scheme, which was launched by Boots UK in collaboration with SARC, was set up 
by HRH after hearing the stories of rape and sexual abuse survivors during her 
frequent visits to the centres. 

 

5.2.5 Forest of Dean Community Hospital update 

 

Following careful review, consideration and discussion, the CCG and 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCS) at their meetings on 25 January, 
2018, unanimously approved the preferred option of a new community hospital in 
the Forest of Dean to replace Dilke Memorial Hospital and Lydney and District 
Hospital. 

 

We strongly believe that this offers a number of benefits to local patients – whether 
that’s improved clinical space to support services, overcoming the challenges of 
maintaining some essential services across two sites or providing a great care 
environment for patients and staff. 

 

We recognise the importance of travel and access to community hospital services 
for all people in the Forest of Dean. It was agreed that travel and access issues 
should be reflected in any consideration of location. 

 

We are committed to carrying out further public engagement on the location of a 
new hospital, including the use of a Citizens’ Jury of Forest of Dean residents to 
make a recommendation to the CCG Governing Body and GCS Board. 

 

An independent body, Citizens Juries CIC was commissioned in March to design 
and run the Citizens’ Jury. 

 

This approach to making a recommendation on the location of a new community 
hospital is consistent with feedback received through the public consultation. 

 

Following discussions with Citizens Juries CIC, a decision to delay the start date of 
the Citizens’ Jury has been taken to allow for more detailed analysis and 
information to be presented to the Jury for their consideration. 

 

The Citizens’ Jury will now start on the 30 July and run to 3 August, 2018. 

Page 114



 21 

The feedback from the earlier public consultation told us that access to services 
was a key issue for local people, and we want to ensure that the jury members 
have the best possible information to assist them in reaching their 
recommendation. 

 

To support this, detailed travel and transport analysis will be progressed and 
further work will be carried out to assess the impact of location on people with 
protected characteristics e.g. people with a disability and people of different ages. 

 

5.2.6   Happy birthday to the NHS… 

 

The NHS is turning 70 on Thursday 5 July 2018. This means an opportunity to 
celebrate the achievements of one of the nation’s most loved institutions, to 
appreciate the vital role the service plays in our lives, and to recognise and thank 
YOU, the extraordinary NHS staff who give their time, commitment and care to the 
people who need it every day. 

As a Trust, we have been marking the countdown to the birthday by sharing film 
clips each day of our amazing colleagues celebrating what the NHS means to 
them. Our community hospitals will be holding a number of NHS 7Tea parties to 
provide an opportunity for colleagues, retired staff, volunteers, patients, carers, and 
local community groups to have a cup of tea and share their NHS stories. 

 

 

5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 (GHNHSFT) 

 
5.3.1 NHS70  
 

GHNHSFT is working collaboratively with its NHS partners to mark the 70th 
birthday of the NHS. While celebrations are planned throughout the year this will 
peak on Thursday 5 July 2018 with a commemorative service at Westminster and 
York Minster.  
 
On the day GHNHSFT will mark the occasion with a day-long coffee morning / tea 
party across its three sites (Gloucester, Cheltenham & Stroud Maternity Unit); the 
focus of the session will be visible leadership when more than a 100 of the Trust’s 
senior leaders will be out and about around the organisation not just serving 
refreshments but talking to staff and patients about what matters most to them as 
we look out to the next decade of NHS care and importantly, enhanced funding to 
support this next stage of this world renowned institution. Around 50 ‘parties’ will 
be staged across inpatient wards, outpatient areas and public spaces. Local 
suppliers and businesses have generously supported the event through the 
donation of funds and goodies. 

   

5.3.2 Capital announcement (£39.5m): Business cases being developed  
 

Work is now firmly underway to develop the required business cases for approval 
by the Board of GHNHSFT and NHS England as part of the recent £39.5m capital 
award for GHNHSFT. The timelines are currently being finalised but subject to 
successful progression through the approval gateways, it is hoped that building 
work will commence in spring 2019 and be completed within 24 months. 
 

Page 115



 22 

Cheltenham General and Gloucestershire Royal Hospitals have been awarded 
£39.5m of capital funding to modernise hospital buildings, transform services and 
deliver even better patient care. The money, awarded by NHS England and 
allocated under the Gloucestershire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
(STP), will be used to provide the next generation of care at the county’s two main 
acute hospitals and is recognition of the strong partnership working between 
health, social care and other partners in the county. To date, the hospitals two sites 
have sometimes been seen as a problem but the Trust believes they present us 
with a huge opportunity to develop our vision of Centres of Excellence providing 
outstanding specialist care where more patients can be treated, waiting times are 
lower, patient experience is improved and patient outcomes are amongst the best.  
 
Importantly, this capital will be invested in both Trust sites signalling that both have 
a vibrant future; the investment at GRH will be targeted at addressing the 
challenges in urgent and emergency care whilst at CGH it will support the delivery 
of highly efficient, patient-centred elective care. The plans are not contingent upon 
public consultation but will be developed in conjunction with the ongoing work to 
develop the One Gloucestershire System Business Case for Urgent and 
Emergency Care and Centres of Excellence which would be subject to consultation 
in the future. 

 

5.3.3 Gloucestershire to become Integrated Care System (ICO)  
 

GHNHSFT is delighted to be playing its part as one of only 14 Integrated Care 
Systems (ICS) in the country following a recent announcement by NHS England. 
An ICS is a new type of collaboration (which involves closer working partnerships) 
between local NHS organisations across the county. In this new age for the NHS, 
transformation is the way forward and the key to transformation is trust between 
collaborating organisations to best serve a local population.  

As part of the announcement, our county has been given a huge vote of 
confidence and praised by NHS England Chief Executive, Simon Stevens for 
effective partnership working and ambitious plans to join up support and services 
for the benefit of communities. Our staff and partners should be rightly proud of 
their hard work, innovation and achievements. Moving forward, we think an ICS for 
Gloucestershire will mean an even greater focus on supporting people to keep 
healthy and independent and developing active communities and that staff should 
experience greater opportunities and find it easier to work with colleagues from 
other organisations to support shared health priorities.  

 
5.3.4 Operational Performance  

 

The Trust continues to make good progress against the four-hour A&E standard. 
Recent performance is set out in figure 1 below. This sustained improvement, 
which included the Trust achieving 100% at the GRH, first time since 2014; month 
to date the Trust is achieving 93.2% for June against the 90% trajectory. This 
sustained improvement resulted in the Trust being taken out of Regulatory 
Enforcement Undertakings.  This improvement could only have been achieved 
through the hard work and commitment of our staff and the continued support and 
contribution of our partners.  

Page 116



 23 

 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 2017 Jan 2018  Feb 2018 Mar 2018 Apr 2018 May 
2018 

95.3%  90.7% 89.7% 88.4% 86.9%  91.9% 91.5% 

Nov 
2016 

Dec 2016 Jan 2017 Feb 2017 Mar 2017  Apr 2017 May 
2017 

86.62% 73.86% 74.69% 77.5% 77.7% 82.8% 79.9% 

 
Figure 1: Performance against the four-hour standard*  

 
*A&E four-hour standard:  That 95% of patients attending an A&E department must 
be seen, treated, and admitted or discharged in under four hours. 
 

GHNHSFT is making some real progress and improvements against cancer 
standards with an increasingly positive performance across all six standards and 
also the trends of specific services against the ‘index measure’ of 62 days from 
referral to first treatment. A few services are not only contributing to this positive 
picture for Gloucestershire but are leading the way nationally. Of note, patients 
with suspected skin cancer are receiving care that meets the national standards on 
100% of occasions; patients with suspected gynaecological cancer are benefitting 
from the innovative cancer exclusion clinic, breast services continue to be national 
leaders, as do those delivering testicular cancer services.  In addition to these 
national exemplars, it is also important to note those services that, whilst not 
achieving the standard, are making huge improvements – colorectal services are a 
great example of a service not just making dramatic improvements in timely care 
but doing so in the face of very significant increases in activity. We celebrated 
some of these improvements, as well as the many staff we have working in cancer 
services, during a social media day at the end of May called #cancerinsight which 
received a great deal of interest from grateful patients. 

 
5.3.5 Accelerated pathways: Patients cared for in more timely way   
 

Two accelerated pathways (suspected lung cancer & chest pain) have recently 
been introduced which means that contact with patients has been sped up 
significantly. The ‘straight to test’ pathway for patients with suspected lung cancer 
means that, for example, patients who are receiving a chest x-ray typically can 
receive the results within 24 hours rather than weeks.  

Meanwhile we have also launched our ‘accelerated chest pain pathway’ as the 
result of the introduction of the one hour troponin blood test. This test allows for 
much more rapid diagnosis of patients presenting to our Emergency Department 
with chest pain. The benefit for patients is the ability to receive an ‘all clear’ for a 
suspected diagnosis of heart attack, without the need for admission, and for those 
in whom a heart attack is confirmed, rapid access to specialist opinion and the right 
treatment. Of particular note in this initiative, is the extent of joint working and 
collaboration between the three services required to make this happen - 
cardiology, unscheduled care and our laboratories. 
 

5.3.6 Acute Medical Initial Assessment Unit (AMIA)  

GHNHSFT has launched a new Acute Medical Initial Assessment unit (AMIA) at 
Gloucestershire Royal Hospital (in May). The AMIA is part of the urgent care 
pathway and provides additional support to colleagues in the Emergency 

Page 117



 24 

Department and the Acute Medical Unit. The purpose of the unit is to provide rapid 
assessment by a Consultant or Senior Decision Maker who will either see, treat 
and discharge directly from the AMIA, or alternatively, stream the patient to the 
most appropriate pathway. The new unit will enable the Trust to reduce potentially 
avoidable admissions and facilitate the right patient, right place, first time. Other 
benefits include:  
 

 To provide patients with the most appropriate healthcare provision 

 To improve patient flow 

 To increase resilience 
 

The unit consists of mixture of assessment trolleys and chairs, dedicated waiting 
area and 4 consultation rooms. The AMIA operates 7 days a week 08:00 – 22:00.  
The pathway into the unit will initially be via ED for GP referrals.  
 

 

6. Recommendations 
 

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are invited to note 

the contents. 

 
 

Dr Andrew Seymour    Mary Hutton  
Clinical Chair      Accountable Officer 
NHS Gloucestershire CCG    NHS Gloucestershire CCG 
 
 
 
29 June 2018 
 

Page 118


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Stroke Rehabilitation - Update
	6 Quarter 4 Adult Social Care Performance Report
	7 Quarter 4 Public Health Performance Report
	8 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report
	9 One Gloucestershire STP Lead Report
	10 Director of Adult Social Services Report
	11 Director of Public Health Report
	12 GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report

